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Management Discussion and Analysis
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

In respect of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2010, there was a consolidated profit after taxation attributable to
shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$860.02 million
(2009: HK$1,387.41 million) and basic earnings per share was
HK$0.63 (2009: HK$1.04). The decline in the net profit for the year
under review was principally attributable to a significant decrease in
the unrealized gain on fair value changes of investment properties of
the Group. As the appreciation rate of the investment properties of
the Group became moderate in 2010, the Group only recorded a gain
on fair value changes of its investment properties of approximately
HK$192.05 million for the year under review while there was a
gain on fair value changes of investment properties of the Group of
approximately HK$2,857.62 million for the year of 2009.

If the changes in fair value of the investment properties were
disregarded, the Group’s profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2010 would amount to approximately HK$2,218.06
million (2009: HK$333.23 million). There was a substantial increase
in the profit before taxation of the Group for the year under review
since considerable sale proceeds of properties in Shanghai, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) were recognized in 2010. For the
year under review, gross proceeds from operations and gross profit of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$3,718.74 million (2009:
HK$703.48 million) and HK$2,556.03 million (2009: HK$479.25
million) respectively. In addition, a net gain in securities investments
held for trading of approximately HK$158.43 million (2009: HK$23.72
million) was recorded and the Group also benefited from an increase
in interest and dividend income to approximately HK$73.47 million
(2009: HK$19.37 million).

DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recommends payment of a final dividend of 6
HK cents per share (2009: special dividend of 13.5 HK cents per share)
so as to retain sufficient fund for the Group’s property development
projects and other suitable investment proposals. The final dividend
would be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 2nd June, 2011 (the “Record
Date”). The shareholders will be given an option to elect to receive
shares of the Company credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of
part of or all of the final dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The payment of the final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme
will be subject to (i) the approval of the proposed final dividend at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on the Record
Date; and (ii) The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) granting listing of and permission to deal in the new shares
to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number
of new shares to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new share will be calculated as the average of the
closing prices per share of the Company traded on the Stock Exchange
for the five consecutive trading days up to and including the Record
Date. A circular providing full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme,
together with a form of election, will be sent to the shareholders of the
Company in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for
the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Wednesday, 29th
June, 2011.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group expanded its business domain in the PRC beyond
Shanghai to participate in investments in Tianjin and Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) in 2010. Since development of the
property projects in Tianjin and Macau was in the initial stage, property
development and investment in Shanghai remained the core business
and the major source of profit of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2010.

During the year of 2010, property development and trading was the
primary profit maker of the Group and a contribution of approximately
HK$2,014.60 million (2009: HK$216.18 million) was recorded while
property investment was the second profit contributor to the Group
and delivered a profit of approximately HK$258.80 million (2009:
HK$2,995.68 million) to the Group’s annual results. Securities trading
activities of the Group ranked third in terms of profit contribution
amongst the operating segments of the Group during the year under
review and recorded a profit of approximately HK$158.25 million
(2009: HK$23.50 million). The Group also received dividends from
its long-term equity investments of approximately HK$24.95 million
(2009: HK$2.56 million) during the year of 2010.

On the other hand, leisure activities of the Group reported a loss of
approximately HK$5.03 million (2009: HK$13.50 million) while the
Group shared a profit of approximately HK$12.78 million (2009:
HK$1.06 million) from its hotel operation for 2010. In addition,
industrial operations recorded a loss of approximately HK$2.52 million
(2009: HK$4.30 million) to the Group’s annual results for 2010.
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Property Development and Investment

The Group’s property development and investment in Pudong of
Shanghai, the PRC, being the principal activities of the Group,
generated total revenue of approximately HK$3,404.35 million
and accounted for approximately 91.6% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010. In
addition, a net gain on disposal and fair value changes of the investment
properties of the Group of approximately HK$184.17 million was
recorded during the year under review. Tomson Riviera was the prime
revenue generator and source of profit of the Group in 2010.

Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is widely considered a prominent residential
development along the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right
opposite the Bund. There are four residential towers with a total
residential gross floor area of approximately 117,400 square meters.
Under the current business strategy of the Group, Towers A and C are
earmarked for sale while leasing arrangement is concentrated in Towers

B and D.

As at 31st December, 2010, approximately 52% of the residential gross
floor area of Towers A and C were sold and approximately 38% of the
residential gross floor area of Towers B and D were leased. Further sales
and leases were recorded in the first quarter of 2011.

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the total of recognized sale
proceeds, rental income and income of management fee generated
from the project amounted to approximately HK$1,800.90 million
and accounted for approximately 48.4% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. In addition, a net gain on disposal and fair
value change of Tomson Riviera of approximately HK$173.50 million
was recorded during the year under review according to applicable
accounting standards in respect of investment properties. Besides, a
sales deposit of the project of approximately HK$286.96 million was
credited at the year end date of 2010 and is expected to be recognized
in the results of the Group in 2011.
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Tomson Riviera Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-rise residential project of the Group
adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in Huamu District
of Pudong and the Group holds a 70% interest in the project. There
are two phases of the residential development. Phases 1 and 2 were
completed in 2008 and 2010 respectively.

Phase 2 of the project comprises 103 units of townhouses and 16
units of detached houses with aggregate saleable gross floor area
of approximately 29,400 square meters and 7,300 square meters
respectively. All the townhouses were pre-sold in 2009 while the
detached houses were launched for pre-sale in mid 2010 and
approximately 52% of the saleable gross floor area were sold. For
the year ended 31st December, 2010, sale proceeds and income of
management fee in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,486.30
million were recognised and accounted for approximately 40% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group.

In addition, a commercial property with a gross floor area of
approximately 6,100 square meters was pre-sold in March 2010 while
an ancillary car park was sold in January 2011. The total sale proceeds
of approximately HK$235.95 million will be recognized in the interim
results of the Group for the year of 2011.

Excluding the pre-sale proceeds of the said commercial property, as at
31st December, 2010, a sum of receipts in advance in respect of sale of
residential units of approximately HK$141.54 million was credited to
the Group and is expected to be recognized in the results of the Group
for the year of 2011.
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Tomson Golf Villas and Garden, Shanghai i 8 R R ) BT R e

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases around o L AT R BT R AE B H — UL AR Y
the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club since 1996 and W B Vi R TR BR e SR B A0 I BH g
there are now less than 10 units available for sale. During the year B IR {8 5 N L 1010 BEAL a] B il B o TR B R
ended 31st December, 2010, sale proceeds generated from Tomson E—-FEVT+ A=t —HIEEE > KH
Golf Villas accounted for approximately 1% of the gross proceeds from P B T I 0] B 22 B B i A A 4 R 2 &
operations of the Group. B AR BT 1% o
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Xingguo Garden, Shanghai ¥ 5 B NG

Apart from holding less than 10 car parks for sale, all the residential BR¥e A AN 210847 B AR 4h > B E R
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s commercial
and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, comprising Tomson
Commercial Building, Tomson International Trade Building, Tomson
Waigaoqiao Industrial Park and the commercial podium of Tomson
Business Centre, provided a steady recurrent revenue to the Group
and accounted for approximately 2.2% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year under review.

Land at Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District, Shanghai

A supplemental agreement in respect of an acquisition of land use
rights of a plot of land located at Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District,
Pudong was signed in April 2009 and approved by the sharcholders
at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held in June
2009. However, a condition precedent, being the confirmation and
approval of filings of relevant documents to the relevant government
department(s) in the PRC, could not be fulfilled because of the fact
that the transfer of interests in the subject plot of land did not comply
with the legal requirements for contribution of registered capital/
investment amount, and the PRC government’s continued policy to
restrict transfer of land for golf course purpose. After negotiation, a
second supplemental agreement was entered into in September 2010 to
restructure the transaction and the Company obtained the shareholders’
approval in October 2010.

Under the second supplemental agreement, the Company acquired
through a wholly-owned subsidiary land use rights of a plot of land
(the “Target Portion”) with a site area of approximately 300,700 square
meters at a consideration of RMB1,829.25 million. Vacant possession
of the Target Portion will be delivered in phases from 2011 to 2013.
Procedures for fulfillment of the conditions precedent as originally
intended have been completed by the vendor in respect of the phases
earmarked for delivery of vacant possession. Proper arrangement
for delivery of vacant possession of the Target Portion in phases in
accordance with the second supplemental agreement have been made
between the Group and the vendor. The Group intends to develop
the Target Portion into a low-density residential development in
phases with a total gross floor area of approximately 213,230 square
meters, which will be in harmony with the Group’s existing residential
development adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club.
Construction of the first phase of the Target Portion is expected to
commence in the third quarter of 2011 and will be completed by 2013.
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Phase 2 of Jinwan Plaza, Tianjin

The Group entered into two agreements in June 2010 to form two joint
ventures with a state-owned enterprise for development of phase 2 of
Jinwan Plaza which is situated in the central area of Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC. The Group and its joint venture partner subsequently
made further contribution to the two joint ventures by way of cash
and injection of land use rights in August 2010. In October 2010,
the Group won an open tender bid for acquisition of a further equity
interest in the two joint ventures and the acquisition was completed
in November 2010. The Group has made a total capital injection of
approximately RMB2,549.14 million in these two entities.

The Group now holds a 75% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan Real
Estate Development Co., Limited (“Jinwan Real Estate”) which plans
to develop two high-rise buildings of 25 to 56 stories for residential
apartments, commerce and other commercial services purposes with a
gross floor area of not more than 207,700 square meters. In addition,
the Group is interested in a 51% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan
Property Co., Limited (“Jinwan Property”) which plans to develop
a skyscraper of 68 stories for commerce, hotel, offices, serviced
apartments and other commercial services purposes with a gross floor
area of not more than 159,000 square meters. Jinwan Real Estate and
Jinwan Property schedule to commence their development project in
the third quarter and at year end of 2011 respectively. It is expected
that construction will be completed in 2015.

Jinwan Plaza in Tianjin K

.
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Penha Hill Project, Macau

The Group entered into a subscription agreement in October 2010
to subscribe for shares in the capital of MHK Limited at a total cash
consideration of HK$210 million. Upon completion in November
2010, the Group holds a 70% interest in the issued share capital
of MHK Limited and further provides financial assistance to such
company by way of a shareholder’s loan. MHK Limited is the owner
and developer of a plot of land with a site area of approximately 2,569
square meters located at Penha Hill, within the zone of World Heritage
of Macau. It is expected to be developed into a luxury condominium
consisting of 4 towers of 7 to 12 stories of residential units, a club house
and car parks with an estimated total gross floor area of approximately
23,600 square meters. The site formation work is in progress and the
major construction work is tentatively scheduled to be completed in
2013.

Penha Hill Project; Macau M7 F# 11175 H
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, which was established in Huamu
district of Pudong, Shanghai, generated revenue of approximately
HK$79.43 million, being about 2.1% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group, for the year ended 31st December, 2010.
There was a decrease in revenue during the year under review which was
mainly attributable to a decline in sale of memberships. The operation
recorded a loss of approximately HK$5.03 million for the year of 2010.
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The InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel

The InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, achieved an improvement in its average occupancy
rate to 74% in 2010. A rise in the revenue and profit of the hotel
operation resulted from not only an inflow of tourists to Shanghai for
the World Expo 2010 but also an increase in clients in business sector
and higher demand for conferencing and exhibition facilities, with the
benefit of an improvement in worldwide economy. In this connection,
the Group, having a 50% interest in the hotel, shared a profit of
approximately HK$12.78 million from the hotel operation.

The InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel LA FIL 0 B B A
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Major Investment Projects
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. Tomson Riviera
R —

Tomson Commercial Building
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The InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel
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. Tomson Business Center
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. Xingguo Garden
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Penha Hill Project, Macau
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Jinwan Plaza (Phase 2), Tianjin
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Tomson Golf Villas and Garden
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Tomson Riviera Garden
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Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club
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Tomson International Trade Building
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Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park
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Industrial Operations

To complement its core business in the property sector, the Group holds
a 58% interest in an operation manufacturing PVC pipes and fittings
in Shanghai. The manufacturing operation accounted for approximately
1.3% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2010. Confronted by severe competition in the
market, a reduction in demand during the period of Shanghai World
Expo 2010 and an increase in production and transportation costs, the
gross profit margin dropped despite a rise in turnover during the year
under review. The operation reported a loss of approximately HK$2.52
million during the year of 2010.

Securities Trading

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”) to diversify
its business portfolio and maximize its return to cash balance. Sale
proceeds from disposal of and dividend receipts of trading securities of
the Group accounted for approximately 5% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year under review. Taking into account
an unrealized gain on changes in fair value of the trading securities of
approximately HK$141.99 million, the Group reported a net gain in
securities investment held for trading of approximately HK$158.43
million for the year under review.

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group holds
a 9.8% interest in the issued capital of Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL?), a listed company in Hong Kong, and a 13.5% interest in the
registered capital of an associated company of RHL established in the
PRC. Both companies are principally engaged in property development
and investment in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai.
Dividends of approximately HK$24.95 million were received and a
gain on changes in fair value of the long-term securities investments of
approximately HK$5.11 million was credited to the investment reserve
of the Group during the year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing
The Group’s capital expenditure and investments for the year ended

31st December, 2010 were funded by cash on hand and bank
borrowings.
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At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$3,201.64 million.
During the year under review, the Group achieved a net cash inflow
of approximately HK$2,142.83 million from its financing activities.
After taking into account the net cash outflow of approximately
HK$991.89 million and HK$766.39 million from its operation and
investing activities respectively, the Group recorded a net cash inflow
of approximately HK$384.55 million for the year under review (2009:
HK$1,213.59 million). Notwithstanding there was a substantial
increase in investment in properties under development during the year
of 2010, a net cash inflow was recorded after raising new bank loans by

the Group.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$2,053.07 million (2009: HK$330.57 million),
equivalent to 19.69% (2009: 3.57%) of the equity attributable to
owners of the Company at the same date. Additional borrowings were
raised in 2010 to finance the acquisition of further equity interests in
the two joint ventures in Tianjin and for working capital purpose. The
Group did not employ any financial instruments for financing and
treasury management. All of the borrowings were bank loans under
security and were subject to floating interest rates. Of those borrowings,
6.3% were due for repayment within one year from the end of the
reporting period, 14.4% were repayable more than one year but not
exceeding two years from the end of the reporting period while the rest
was due for repayment more than two years but within five years from
the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s capital commitments in
relation to expenditure on properties under development, which were
contracted but not provided for, amounted to approximately HK$35.11
million (2009: HK$431.68 million). The Group anticipates funding
those commitments from its future operating revenue, bank borrowings
and other sources of finance where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group recorded a current ratio of 2.88
times (2009: 2.51 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to equity
actributable to the owners of the Company) of 76.65% (2009: 63.80%).
The current ratio was strengthened owing to mainly a substantial
addition of properties under development in Tianjin while the new
bank loans raised by the Group during the year under review pushed up
the gearing ratio.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2010, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$5,939.96 million (2009:
HK$736.54 million) were pledged to banks to secure bank loans of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi and the liabilities are well covered by the assets, the
management therefore expects that the change in value of Renminbi will
not have any adverse effect on the Group since Renminbi has generally
been perceived as having potential to appreciate in value relative to
Hong Kong Dollars. On the other hand, all of the other assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollars
or United States Dollars; hence, the Group does not anticipate any
material foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group had a contingent liability of
US$3 million in respect of a provision of a guarantee to indemnify the
management company of the InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel
for part of the fund paid for hotel renovation and system upgrading.
The Board is of the opinion that it would be unlikely for the Group
to suffer any material financial loss as a result of giving the aforesaid
guarantee. Details of the contingent liabilities are shown in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under
review on page 123.

PROSPECTS

2011 will be a challenging year for the Group. The series of measures
recently promulgated by the central government of the PRC to regulate
activities in the real estate market will likely have an unfavourable
impact on market sentiment. The uncertainties arising from the
possibility of pronouncement of further measures by the PRC
government will inevitably affect both property developers and investors

alike.

As property development and investment in the PRC continue to be the
Group’s principal business activities, with Tomson Riviera and Tomson
Riviera Garden being the most important sources of profit for the
Group, it is anticipated that business prospects in this segment should
become more challenging during 2011.

Throughout 2011 and beyond, the Group expects to devote its
attention to its own development of the low-density residential property
project at Jingiao-Zhangjiang District of Pudong, Shanghai, as well
as the composite property project in Jinwan Plaza in Tianjin and the
residential property project in Macau with the joint-venture partners. In
line with the Group’s strategy, all these projects will be targeted at the
mid- to high- end of the market.
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The Group will continue to monitor market trends and developments
in the real estate sector in the PRC and will endeavour to improve the
quality of its investment portfolio when opportunities arise. At the
same time, it will also explore and evaluate other potential investment
opportunities in cities other than the first-tier cities in the PRC.

In January 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to purchase office premises situated at 72nd Floor of Shanghai
World Financial Centre in Pudong, Shanghai at a consideration of
approximately RMB267.42 million. It is tentatively intended to retain
the premises for use as offices of the Group in Shanghai. The Board
considers that the acquisition is an attractive opportunity for the Group
to secure long-term office space in a prestigious property situated in a
prime location in the financial district of Pudong, Shanghai and which
should offer good potential in enhancing shareholders’” value.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group engaged around 1,000
employees in total in its various offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai,
Tianjin and Taiwan excluding associates and jointly controlled
entities. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the Group
during the year under review amounted to approximately HK$75.85
million. Remuneration and benefit packages are generally structured
with reference to both market practice and terms, as well as individual
responsibilities, performance and qualifications. Discretionary bonus
may be paid based on individual contribution. In addition, the
Company has established a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group are eligible for being granted
options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its gratitude
to the management and all the staff members of the Group for their
devotion and loyalty to the Group over the years.

On behalf of the Board of
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2011
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Co%orate Governance Report
4 5F A R WOk

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance standard and procedures which
emphasize a quality management, transparency and accountability to all

shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December, 2010,
except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this is
a deviation from the Code, dual role leadership provides the
Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) with a
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
operation of the business. The Board is of the view that there
is an adequate balance of power. The Company’s daily business
management is shared amongst Madam Hsu and other members
of the executive committee of the Board. Besides, all major
decisions are made in consultation with members of the Board
and appropriate committees of the Board; and

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term, nevertheless, they
are subject to retirement and re-election at lease once every three
years at annual general meetings of the Company according to
the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

THE BOARD

The Board is composed of eight members, including five executive
Directors, Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director),
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman), Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-
Chairman), Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, and
three independent non-executive Directors, Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar and Mr Lee Chan Fai.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles in the Board and its
committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and Officers on
pages 29 to 32.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company represent
more than one third of the Board and one of them has the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required by the Listing Rules.
The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the Group
and the shareholders. The principal functions of the Board are to
formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s major corporate
matters, to monitor and control significant operational and financial
matters of the Group. The independent non-executive Directors have
contributed valuable independent views and proposals for the Board’s
deliberation and decisions.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when required.
Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the
regular Board meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
of the Board in setting the agenda for the regular meetings and all
Directors are consulted whether to include matters in the agenda.
Agenda and accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner before the appointed date of each regular Board meeting.
Drafts and final versions of minutes of those regular Board meetings are
circulated to the Directors for comment and record respectively within
a reasonable time after each meeting. During the year of 2010, four
regular meetings were held by the Board and a Vice-Chairman of the
Board had an annual interchange with the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company without the other executive Directors
present.

The Board has established an executive committee, an audit committee
and a remuneration committee (collectively the “Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities.
The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, changes
of members of the Board and the Committees, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. The Committees have to report regularly to the
Board on their decisions and recommendations. The management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the
Board and the Committees.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seck independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to discharge their
duties.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was established
by the Board with specific written terms of reference in June 2005.
The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors of the
Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, and
Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive Commirttee. The
Executive Committee may convene meetings as it considers necessary
for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters concerning the day-
to-day management of the business of the Company and any matters to
be delegated to it by the Board from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference in
June 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of its Directors
and senior management and to determine specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management of the
Company while the remuneration of any member of the Remuneration
Committee shall be determined by the Board. Madam Tung Wai
Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar and Mr Lee Chan Fai, being all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr Tong
Albert, an executive Director of the Company, are members of the
Remuneration Committee while Madam Tung Wai Yee acts as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Two Remuneration Committee’s meetings were held during 2010
for considering remuneration packages of certain Directors of the
Company and annual review of the remuneration policy and packages
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company for the year
ended 31st December, 2010 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 97.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has already been set up
by the Board with written terms of reference. The Audit Committee
is composed of all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Madam Tung Wai Yee
and Mr Lee Chan Fai. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung
Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications as required under the Listing Rules.
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Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to review
significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the overall
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management frameworks of
the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the Company’s auditor
(the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2010, the Audit Committee held three meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual results as well as the financial
reporting matters of the Group, evaluating the internal control and risk
management system of the Group, and considering the engagement
of the Auditor and provision of non-audit services by the Auditor.
In March 2011, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review the
annual financial statements of the Group for 2010 and consider the re-
appointment of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board to approve the Group’s
financial statements and consider the re-appointment of the Auditor
at annual general meetings of the Company. The Audit Committee
concluded that the internal control system of the Group was effective in
2010 and satisfied with the resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings of
the Board and the meetings of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee held during the year ended 31st December, 2010 is set out
below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

Executive Directors HfiEg
Madam Hsu Feng & MZx
(Chairman of the Board and Managing Director) (EF LR At FARAH)
Mr Tong Albert B rIREE
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (HH | /)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R P
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (HE )
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi sk e
(appointed on 3rd August, 2010) (W ZF—FE/H = HEZT)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen AEREEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BioL AT
Madam Tung Wai Yee % ven
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (HZ 5 & 1)
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar b Tt
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (HHFEAGTE)
Mr Lee Chan Fai RS

Y Ve Yipa-f i ]
Board Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee
WY HWEHE KBZHE
4/4 N/A R N/A R
414 202 N/A N H
4/4 N/A A A N/A REF
202 N/A A N/A A
414 N/A R H N/A R
4/4 202 3/3
44 202 3/3
44 202 3/3
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles, new Directors could be elected by the
Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting
of the Company in the case of filling a casual vacancy or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company in the case of an
addition to the Board and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company did not establish a nomination committee pursuant to
recommended best practices of the Code and the Board is responsible
for reviewing its own structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience of its members), and identifying,
selecting and considering any appointment of its own members and
considering nomination of those retiring members for re-election by the
shareholders in the general meetings. The Board is also responsible for
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into his responsibilities and duties and other related
regulatory requirements.

During the year under review, a board meeting was held, with the
participation of all the then Directors, to consider and approve the
appointment of Mr Yeung Kam Hoi as an executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee. In addition, all retiring Directors
who offered for re-election were nominated for re-election at the 2010
annual general meeting of the Company.

In addition, at a regular meeting held in March 2011, the Board
nominated those Directors of the Company who will retire at the 2011
annual general meeting of the Company for re-election at that general
meeting, except for Madam Tung Wai Yee who has informed the
Company that she will not seek re-election.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice regarding securities
“Code of

Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the required standard of the

transactions by the Directors and relevant employees (the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, each of
whom has confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Code of Practice throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective system
of internal control is maintained within the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders” investment and the Group’s assets. The Company has
adopted a code on internal control applicable to the Group in terms of
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions since 2005. The code on internal control is reviewed regularly
and modified pursuant to operational requirements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has been authorized by the Board to review the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group regularly
and a meeting was held in 2010 for that purpose. The Board, through
the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the Group has
complied with all the applicable provisions of the Group’s code on
internal control throughout the year ended 31st December, 2010 and
considers that the Group’s internal control system was effective and
adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are adequate,
and their training programmes and budget are sufficient.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; have
made judgements and estimates that were prudent and reasonable; and
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial statements
and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2010 is set out in the independent
Auditor’s report on pages 50 and 51.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2010
amounted to approximately HK$2,929,000 and HK$690,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were
taxation services and issuance of accountants’ reports on a major
transaction of the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board and the majority of the Directors
(including a member of the Audit Committee and chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) participated in the 2010 annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders. In
addition, at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
29th October, 2010 for considering a connected transaction relating
to a supplemental agreement on the acquisition of land use rights in
Pudong, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), a
majority of the Board members (including a member of an independent
committee of the Board formed for that transaction) were available to
answer questions relating to the transaction.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders of the
Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have a timely and
updated information of the Group, the Company has set up its own
website at http://www.tomson.com.hk where the corporate information,
interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars, business
development and other information of the Company are posted.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribution to the well-being of the
societies. During the year under review, the Group has made charitable
endowments for, inter alia, education purpose, disaster relief, children
sponsorship and health promotion. Donations were made to various
worldwide and local charitable organizations including Red Cross
Society of China, World Vision Hong Kong and ORBIS.

In 2010, the Group started a charity programme in the PRC. The
Group not only provides financial assistance to 50 high school students
in Gansu Province of the PRC by sponsoring their next three years’
tuition and living expenses but also concerns about their spiritual
welfare by a launch of a campaign whereby staff members of the Group
have volunteered to establish close and continuous rapport with these
students.
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The Company has also re-enrolled in the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups in 2010, to
sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups of those schools
enrolled under the project so as to engage youth volunteers to serve the
community for contribution to social development.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 60, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) since January 1990. She
was appointed as Managing Director of the Company in December
2001 and the chairman of the executive committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also
elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006. She has over 10
years’ experience in film production, and in property development and
investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has been engaged in
the property development and leisure activities in the Mainland China
in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors
of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares Investments
Limited (“E-Shares”). Both of Madam Hsu and Mr Tong Albert are
directors of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”) and executive
directors of a listed company in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China (“Hong Kong”), Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”). Madam Hsu is also the owner of E-Shares
and King China and a substantial shareholder of RHL. E-Shares, King
China and RHL are substantial shareholders of the Company under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her parties
acting in concert, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are
interested and taken to be interested in a total of 697,922,441 shares in
the capital of the Company (including share options).

Mr Tong Albert, aged 28, has been appointed an executive Director
of the Company since December 2001 and a member of the executive
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since June 2005.
He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2006.
He has joined the Group and taken up directorships of the subsidiaries
of the Company since March 2001. He has participated in the Group’s
business development, corporate management, property trading and
securities investment for years.

Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board
and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger brother of
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive
Director of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares. Both
of Mr Tong Albert and Madam Hsu are directors of King China and
executive directors of RHL. He is also deemed to be a substantial
shareholder of RHL.
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Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Albert together with his parties
acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are
interested and taken to be interested in a total of 697,922,441 shares in
the capital of the Company (including share options).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 30, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive committee of
the Board since October 2008. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2010. He has joined the Group since December
2000 and has participated in property trading and business management
of the Shanghai office of the Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally engages
in property development and trading business in the Mainland China.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the elder
brother of Mr Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive
Director of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares. Mr
Tong Chi Kar Charles is deemed to be a substantial shareholder of
RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, together with
his parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert,
are interested and taken to be interested in a total of 697,922,441
shares in the capital of the Company (including share options).

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, aged 61, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive committee
of the Board since August 2010. He is the Chief Deputy General
Manager of the Group and a director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr Yeung is an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute. He also holds a Master of Accountancy degree of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr Yeung has served as the company
secretary of various listed companies in Hong Kong since 1988, and for
the past 12 years, as group company secretary of a listed conglomerate
consisting of five listed companies. He has over 20 years’ experience
in an extensive range of corporate exercises and regulatory compliance
matters of public listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, aged 63, has joined the Group since May
1993 and has been appointed a Director of the Company since April
1998. He now acts as an executive Director of the Company and has
been appointed a member of the executive committee of the Board
since June 2005. Mr Chuang also acts as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a director and the general manager
of Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and is engaged in the operation of Tomson
Shanghai Pudong Golf Club and the development of Tomson Golf
Villas in Pudong, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China. He has
extensive experience in sport and recreational activities and has been
engaged in management of the golf club and development of golf villas
in the Mainland China in recent years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Tung Wai Yee, aged 66, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since February 1994. She has acted
as a member of the audit committee of the Board since April 1999 and
was appointed the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Board in June 2005. She was an independent non-executive director of
RHL up to January 2003.

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 46, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the chairman
of the audit committee of the Board since September 2004. He was
also appointed a member of the remuneration committee of the Board
in June 2005. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is practising as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and is the sole proprietor of Oscar S. P.
Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$102,000 to HK$112,800 with effect from 1st January, 2011, which
was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the shareholders
at the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company, with reference to
his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 48, has been appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board since
December 2005. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong, is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and is qualified
as a Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First Class Registered
Architect in the Mainland China. Mr Lee has acted as a director of
Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects Limited since 1990’s and has
been appointed as a director of JSP Architects Limited since 2008. He
has extensive experience in architectural design.
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The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$102,000 to HK$112,800 with effect from 1st January, 2011, which
was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the shareholders
at the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company, with reference to
his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 44, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998 and
has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company since August
2005.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 52, joined the Group in 1990. He was
appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September 1999.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2010 and the independent Auditor’s
report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure activities,
manufacturing of PVC pipes, securities trading and investment holding.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company while the principal activities and other particulars of
the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed out in Note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 137.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December, 2010
and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are set out on
pages 52 to 138. An analysis by operating segments is set out in Note 9
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 94.

No interim dividend was paid during the year under review (2009: Nil).

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of 6 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2010 (2009: special dividend
of 13.5 HK cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 2nd June, 2011
(the “Record Date”). The shareholders will be given an option to elect
to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of part of or
all of the final dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The payment of the final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme
will be subject to (i) the approval of the proposed final dividend at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on the Record
Date; and (ii) The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) granting listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares
to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number
of new Shares to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new Share will be calculated as the average of the
closing prices per Share of the Company traded on the Stock Exchange
for the five consecutive trading days up to and including the Record
Date. A circular providing full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme,
together with a form of election, will be sent to the shareholders of the
Company in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for
the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Wednesday, 29th
June, 2011.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
31st May, 2011 to Thursday, 2nd June, 2011, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for the proposed 2010 final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 30th
May, 2011 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed to 16.66% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations
with the largest customer accounting for 3.59% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations while 60.08% of the Group’s purchases were
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the largest supplier
accounting for 35.14% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% interest in the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group donated
approximately HK$1,825,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$12,304,000 (2009:
HK$59,219,000) while disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$101,140,000 (2009:
HK$1,319,283,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in
Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 102
to 104.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either under
development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out on pages 140

to 145.
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BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31st December, 2010 are set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on page 121.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

Interest expenses of approximately HK$2,199,000 (2009:
HK$3,840,000) attributable to properties under development were
capitalised by the Group during the year.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December,
2010 amounted to approximately HK$118,546,000 (2009:
HK$316,510,000).

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group as at
31st December, 2010 amounting to approximately HK$5,781,407,000
are to be carried forward. Other movements in reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 56 to 58 and 130 respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, the Company repurchased a total of
3,264,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
before expenses of approximately HK$9.91 million as follows:

i £ B 15 hl
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Month of repurchase Number of Shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
in 2010 repurchased per Share per Share price paid
B -FAERIEZ B Il i B Aoy 2 % H B dgt 9 A5 B Je AI% A5 AU 28
(HKS) (HKS) (HK$°000)
(#z) (7T) (T#7T)
December 3,264,000 3.06 2.97 9,910
+=A
Total 3,264,000 9,910
A
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The repurchases of the Shares were made pursuant to a general mandate
granted to the Board by the shareholders of the Company at the 2010
annual general meeting of the Company to repurchase Shares and all of
the aforesaid repurchased Shares have been duly cancelled.

The Shares were repurchased at a substantial discount to their
underlying net asset value so it would enhance the Company’s net
asset value per Share and earnings per Share and therefore benefit
the Company and those shareholders who retain their interests in the
capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, other than the aforesaid repurchases
and cancellation of 3,264,000 Shares, the Company issued and
allotted 47,305,508 new Shares at a price of HK$2.91 per Share to the
shareholders who elected to receive Shares credited as fully paid in lieu
of cash for the special dividend of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

All those new Shares issued rank pari passu in all respect with the then
existing issued shares of the Company.

As at 31st December, 2010, 1,391,579,496 Shares were in issue. Details
of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 116 and 117.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the
preceding five financial years is set out on page 147.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and those
who were in office during the year under review are:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi
(appointed on 3rd August, 2010)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Madam Tung Wai Yee

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company is shown on pages
29 to 32.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s Directors
during the year is set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 97.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any Director of the Company appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company in the
case of filling a casual vacancy or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company in the case of an addition to the Board. Mr
Yeung Kam Hoi was appointed an additional executive Director of the
Company by the Board in August 2010 and will therefore retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with Article 99 and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.
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All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive Directors,
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
of the Company for the time being or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the nearest number to but not less than one-
third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election and shall be eligible for
re-election. In this connection, Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Madam Tung
Wai Yee has informed the Company that she will not seck re-election
while Mr Tong and Mr Chuang, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The re-election of Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen as Directors of the Company is subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and details of those Directors will be disclosed in a circular
of the Company to be despatched to the shareholders together with the
notice of the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have an unexpired
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein (including interests and
short positions which they were taken to have under Section 344 of
the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(I) The Company:

g2 A R

AR -FEFHA=Z+—H > ARAEK
TR AL R SCHAT o] AR Bk B (1 (R
L B RG) SHXVER 2 E K rk BE) Z B
R HE R B A BRI 1 v A JE 7 R R O
BB AR 1) 553520 2 B E T A 5% 6k 1 BT
Al 8 RC M A (B3 AR R G o I 3 Bk
W) 2534400 wAR s B A 2 M 4R SR )
ol ZH 8 IR S P G o BT LA (TR T
RLRID 1) 2 W RE g A 2% w) e Wi 52 e 22 e

fn SORB R -
@M AKAH:

Shares of HK$0.50 each 45 I8 i #0509 oG =2 B By
Number of Shares
by 8 H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors HHEH T A B KBS AR Jefb b g
Madam Hsu Feng (4) fr #Hxt @ 108,930,033 (B) Nil % 253,985,265 (C) & (D) 235,040,000 (E)
98,667,143 (F)
1,300,000 (G)
Mr Tong Albert (4) wTREE 1) 44,079,848 (B) Nil Nil # () 638,842,593 (H)
15,000,000 (1)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (4) W REE ) 26,587,295 (B) Nil Nil # (D) 658,335,146 (H)
13,000,000 (])
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen RS Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ 2,000,000 (K)

(I) The Company’s associated corporations:

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited (“China Boom”)

Shares of US$1 each

(D) AR Z HIBH

1) BEREFRAF(THEE]

g JB v A 136 o0 Z B By

Number of shares of China Boom

BB H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director HHEA i AHESR KIS V] JCfbE R
Madam Hsu Feng (L) fr %t @) 716,800 Nil 4 563,200 Nil 4
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Notes:

A)

®B)

©

2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited
(“Tomson Entertainment”)

Shares of NTD10 each
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Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

R EREZ B RS
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director i 3i¥ LIN KRR Al JofbERR
Madam Hsu Feng (M) & xt m) 1,350,000 Nil 1,125,000 Nil %

Madam Hsu Feng is mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles. As at 31st December, 2010, they were considered to be
persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO and held an aggregate
of 697,922,441 Shares (of which 668,622,441 Shares were issued and
29,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options),
representing 50.15% interests in the total issued share capital of the
Company, pursuant to the SFO. If all the outstanding share options
under the share option scheme of the Company were fully exercised,
they would be interested in 48.84% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company.

These Shares were held by the relevant Directors of the Company in
their capacities as beneficial owners.

The 253,985,265 Shares were beneficially held by the following
substantial shareholders of the Company:

(B)

©
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FATEY N & R A 3£697,922,441 11 1]
By (G 7 28 5] &30 B 8 17 A 250.15%
HE25) > HP668,622,441 1K C K17 >
1M129,300,000 % ji~ 17 fif i 1 HE Iy mT 7 8%
AT o A AR 2y 7 B ERE ST B JE T T A
AT 2 5 e W A A AT O - 8
AN T 2K B BEAT B AR A 48.84%
HE2E o

% S B A7 o AR 2% R AT B S g D HCEL 2
AN GHFRA -

7% %5253,985,265 B Ly 1 R B A A F) 22
FEBRRE A

Number of Shares held
Name of companies A Piked ey 2 S H
King China Holdings Limited S AR M A PR 148,004,830

E-Shares Investments Limited

As Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of King China Holdings
Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited, she was deemed to be
interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO.

E-Shares Investments Limited

105,980,435

253,985,265

O FR A L A R TR A BR A A
JZE-Shares Investments Limited.Z 4= i HE
fi > WO IR GE 27 B 1) > Bl bl sl
T 2 ey 2 W 4 o
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D)

(E)

(F)

(©)

H)

The following companies, being private companies incorporated in (D) AT (B A A N R AL R (T
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of the B 1) A s R BT B ([ o)) 5 4 ar
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and wholly-owned subsidiaries ZRNRNF S WA —RNEE T2 A
of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) Al = IR A AR (] 2 E
(“RHL”), beneficially held an aggregate of 168,714,851 Shares: Bt N /) H g R A 38168,714,851 1%
& py -
Number of Shares held
Name of companies R Pt Be by 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited HRMEARAA 13,361,530
Shine Trip Limited Fitg JR AT PR/ ) 155,353,321
168,714,851
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were directors of RHL. On the MR 2 4 B 1 () 5 A= ¥ B )1 T Y #E
other hand, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Hom—m o MIECGES M EK
Charles were or were deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL By > i+~ 5 RS A KT 5
pursuant to the SFO. Se A B E A A N 2 R R o
Madam Hsu Feng had entered into agreements with Mr Tong Albert (E) b A B IR oA R T 5 ek A
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, to sell to each of them 117,520,000 BT Wk o AR SR 4 Al 117,520,000
Shares, in an aggregate of 235,040,000 Shares, which had been pledged BBy (4 3£235,040,0008% A% 143) - T %
by Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in favour of Madam TEJe MG T 5 e A 4R T % 5 Ik iy
Hsu as a security for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid T HEBBATHESE N Falih®%ET
agreements. Hence Madam Hsu Feng had a security interest in these ZEAT KRS 2 MR o N AR 9E G
issued Shares pursuant to the SFO. HEMEEG)Y > B A EZED
AT 2 — AR AR AR o
Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu (F) FE A b gl B FE(E) BT Al 2 1 R 0 DA AR
Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered BEGELE ARG s Lt BT
to be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO. In this connection, [@ S K T 35 etk it B — BT A
as at 31st December, 2010, Madam Hsu Feng was taken to be interested + oWt R X —-FEF+H=+—
in a total of 98,667,143 Shares held by Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong H o %M &+ 308 B A s 7R e A4
Chi Kar Charles, amongst which, 28,000,000 Shares were issuable upon P T aietEfifa 2 4 3£98,667,143%
exercises of share options. JB 3 A 25 > H 128,000,000 8% 74 17 i B
JERE W 7] T 354 T o
Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an option G) i A EE A N2 B hira A
under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled her to INT) 2 TS RRE ST 3 TE T 2 BERRE 5 JE U »
subscribe for 1,300,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per WEHENEEZE - EZ—RFE+—A+2H
Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015. 1F A 80\ AR 2 W1 IR i B AR AR 1) 3.644 7%
J6 2 TR W AE TR 1,300,000 8 B 173 o
Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu (H) FLA Rl Bt 5 (B) Ar il 22 g LA S AR 4 (G

Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered

to be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO.

In this connection, as at 31st December, 2010, Mr Tong Albert was not
only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu
Feng, but taken to be interested in a total of 521,322,593 Shares held
by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which,
14,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options.
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On the other hand, as at 31st December, 2010, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles was not only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred
from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be interested in a total of
540,815,146 Shares held by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert,
amongst which, 16,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share
options.

Mr Tong Albert held in his capacity as a beneficial owner options
under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled him to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.155
per Share during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July, 2011 and
13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share during
a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial owner
an option under the share option scheme of the Company which
entitled him to subscribe for 13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price
of HK$3.644 per Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th
November, 2015.

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an
option under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled
him to subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of
HK$2.155 per Share during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July,
2011. He was considered to be interested in 0.14% of the total issued
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2010, pursuant to the
SFO. If all the outstanding share options under the share option scheme
of the Company were fully exercised, he would be interested in 0.14%
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner a personal
interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of China Boom
while the Company held the balance of interest of 563,200 shares
(being 44%) in the capital of China Boom through its wholly-owned
subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more than
one-third of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence,
she was also taken to be interested in those shares held by the Company.
In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested
in 1,280,000 shares (being 100%) in the issued share capital of China
Boom pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner a personal
interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of Tomson
Entertainment while the Company held an interest in 1,125,000
shares (being 45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment through
its wholly-owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the
exercise of more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of
the Company, hence, she was also taken to be interested in those shares
held by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and
deemed to be interested in 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the issued
share capital of Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

@

0]

X)

@

M)

Report of the Directors

o W

e R EFE-FET A= —
H &G TmidEANEEARHGHME L+
B 2 117,520,000/8% 1% 3 HE 25 - H B
B BEAT MR e R TR e A
2 4 3£540,815, 1468 B 3 #E 25 > Hop
16,300,000 % Ji~ 17 fi i AR AR K5 ] 5 8547 -

B FReAEDHEGEAS AN B NRFE
AN ) 2 B RERT BT R 2 B RE  E
W AR EE - F——FLH
T = Lk A W A 2 T R A R
£32.155%% 7T 2 58 W18 52 152,000,000 % i
BERREE-FE-LE+—H+ 01k
oy W0\ AE 22 3 TR 1N 42 B IR 4033644 5 T
2 AR HEAE R 13,000,000 % 4

TRt HERESAZ B0
HARN T Z BT B H T 2 WA
B HAEMRAEE - F—-HFE+—A
U H Ik B BN AR 2 R A R
3.644%5 76 2 58 I A8 52 1% 13,000,0004% A%
¥ -

HEREEAEDHERHEA A B0
AR A 2 B R RE ST B E T 2 R A
B MEEREE ~F - —F LA
T = kA AR 2 R N
1332.155%5 70 2 58 I 8 58 1#%2,000,000 %
iy o MRYE GBS R B 6m) - ok =&
—ZAET A=+ —HEHBFAE AN
AR ER AT AR Z20.14%HE 55 o i iR
AN A RE S B IE N BT R AT 2
T PR A 2 R AT I > B A AR W 2 B
KEFETIEA FEEH0.14% 1 45 -

H L LU HESEAAZ G OTEAE
716,800 % B ZE B 1 (Bl56% ) 2 A
%o MARLNFE L2 EHEA A RFE
T 2563,200/% & % (Bl44%) 2
RERS = O Lo W0 2 mT 488 461 AR 4 ) IR
Ker b =m0z b2 W s
WHBRAEZEHANAREZ KM
WE A5 o ARHRTT T > R IR GE J K&k
B > R EHE MR AR A B
B 34T AR TR 221,280,000/% (B1100% )
B 25

L LU HEREA A Z S OFA
1,350,000 % 5 Fi 5 44 5 10 (R154%) 2 A
NHE R > T AR ) A R A
FEH1,125,000/8 5 B 152 44 1%y (BP459%)
ZHE R o R A Bl B T AN W
WRE =y — b2 B
MR WAZSEh AR AR Z B
HERE - MM S > WIE GEH RINE
efl) > e LA LR ARFE L E
I 4 > BB AT B A R 222,475,000/8 (B
99%) M 131 4 o

Tomson Group Limited %5 Fi 42 Ml 47 L 24 W)

42



43

Report of the Directors

oy e

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, debentures
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31st December, 2010, which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein (including interests or short positions which they were taken
to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 29th
May, 2002. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective till
28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period, no further
options will be offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions
of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Apart from the Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the end of
the year ended 31st December, 2010 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Major terms of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
including any executive director of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iii)  any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or

(iv)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.
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As at the date of this Report, the maximum number of Shares available
for issue under options granted or to be granted under the Scheme
is 59,174,911, representing approximately 4.24% of the Company’s
existing issued share capital.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant or grantee
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the
date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options
to a participant or grantee would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant in
excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with such
participant or grantee and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not be more than 10 years commencing
from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised under the Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way
of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option granted under
the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option,
which must be a business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business days

immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.
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Movements during the year
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During the year ended 31st December, 2010, no options were granted,

exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. The carrying rights to

subscribe for Shares under the Scheme are shown as follows:

AT BE A D B B 2 5 )
WEE - —FE+ A=+ —H I

A

7 2 A BB AR B 5% w8 T A AT

o~ FE S B o %t #IH T 2 B M 6y

HEAMFER T
Number of Shares subject to the options
TR Z By
Cancelled/
Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance
Exetcise price Exercise asat during during during asat
Name of grantees Date of grant per Share period 1.1.2010 the year the year theyear  31.12.2010
JA20104 20104
ARy UILE AR REER B 121310
REANGH glnm ffif A Btk il filE d /%M ZHit
(HKS)
(#7)
Category 1: Directors
R VRS ¢
Madam Hsu Feng 13.11.2007 3.644  13.11.2007 - 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
fr gt 12.11.2015
Mr Tong Albert 24.7.2006 2155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
R e 23.7.2011
13.11.2007 3.044  13.11.2007 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
12.11.2015
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles 13.11.2007 3.644  13.11.2007 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
Rg Pk 12.11.2015
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ei3Y 23.7.2011
Total for Directors
ERLAE 31,300,000 - - - 31,300,000
Category 2: Employees
SR R
Employees 24.7.2006 2155 24.7.2006 - 6,050,000 - - - 6,050,000
& 23.7.0011
Total for Employees
BAZ4H 6,050,000 - - - 6,050,000
Total for all categories
Bt K0 44 37,350,000 - - - 37,350,000
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Save as disclosed above, no other options under the Scheme were
outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year ended 31st
December, 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director of
the Company, is a director and substantial shareholder of RHL. Mr
Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, both being Vice-Chairmen
of the Board and executive Directors of the Company, are deemed to be
substantial shareholders of RHL pursuant to the SFO. In addition, Mr
Tong Albert is a director of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC through its subsidiaries
and associated company, while property development and investment
in Shanghai, in particular Pudong, is one of the principal businesses of
the Group, so the business of RHL in the property sector in Shanghai
(the “Excluded Business”) may potentially compete with the Group’s
business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business which may
compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than that business where the Directors
have been appointed/were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed company in Hong Kong and the
Excluded Business is managed by its independent management and
administration. Besides, the Board is independent of the board of
directors of RHL and the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company will assist in monitoring the operation of the Group, the
Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business independently of,
and at an arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31st December, 2010.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into
or subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2010.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
effective staff management and incentive structure. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to market
terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications. The
emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company are decided
by the remuneration committee of the Board or the full Board (as the
case may be) and the fee of the Directors is fixed by the Board under
the authorization of the shareholders of the Company. In addition, the
Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to which the
directors and employees of the Group are eligible for being granted
options to subscribe for Shares as a long-term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was registered
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a
defined contribution scheme effective from December 2000 and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees according to
the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. Should there be the employer’s
voluntary contributions to the scheme, forfeited contributions in
this nature can be applied to reduce the amount of future voluntary
contributions payable by the employer.

On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
China are members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and the employees are obliged to make contributions at a
certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$5,476,000 (2009:
HK$4,720,000) and no contributions were forfeited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2010, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or indirectly, in
5% or more of the total issued share capital and underlying shares of
the Company and those interests were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial sharcholders

ER )L
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A A E AT B AS KR B B0 2 5%k
DA b B HE a0 % 4 HE 45 2H IR GRE O It
B A1) 25 33600 2 K e H Bk i T A7
MR

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

total issued share capital
of the Company)

i 4% 4 e 4y ¥ H

(AR AT 2 ORI IBRAZE )

Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) N L EA RA A (TN (@)
King China Holdings Limited LB R A F (b)

168,714,851 (12.12%)
148,004,830 (10.63%)

E-Shares Investments Limited (4) 105,980,435 (7.61%)

Notes: W 33

(a) Amongst these Shares disclosed, 155,353,321 Shares were beneficially (a)
held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Superwell Development Limited in which RHL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell Development Limited and
RHL were interested or were taken to be interested in these Shares

RGP 2 B b > 155,353,321 i
Ml mEARA A Em A - BiEA R
NEAEEERARA A Z 2EWE
oca] s TN R R 2 2R o
s ARIE GBI I B AR B) > H R AR
oy ] B R A BR AN T R A A B
W AR 2 WA % S TRy 2 M A o

pursuant to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO are set
out in Note (D) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

A TR AR A R S e ) e 10 WAL
FRAT BOHE 5 A0 RE A - O AS i 5 3 A I
AREE S [ i s R | —
Z MIEED)A -

(b) King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited were (b)
the beneficial owners of these Shares respectively. They were beneficially

i 3 4 @ G FR /A 7] X E-Shares Investments
Limited/> Al 2% Sy 2 B A N »
MRt LV E A NS0 Hw &
2 A 6 TR 4E [ A KR 2 B) XE-Shares
Investments Limited ° K UL - 1R 8 GE 25
BB AR - 5% 5% N ml B 2 B E
i A A R N R AR R [
R IR g PR T | — 0 T B BR 2 AR
+ G TRIEAE RS TRIEENRAZ
2N A e A o B 1y HE £ AR Ry -

and wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial
owner. By virtue of the SFO, their interests in the Shares therefore
constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of the Company as
disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” in this Report.
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Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) who
had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the total issued
share capital and the underlying shares of the Company and those
interests or short positions were required to be recorded in the register
kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2010.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report, the
Company maintains a sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2010 have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who were the Auditor of the Company for the past three
financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AR

Deloitte.
=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF TOMSON GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 138, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2010, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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(7B 42 7 £ 3 I 3 22 7 PR 4 )

A % BLRT AT B 58 B A% R BES52 8 138 H
ZHEERARAR ([BAF ) &HHE
ANF (BT EEE]) 2458 MBEHRE S K
FEBER -EF-FF+ A=+ —HZ%
AMBRNEL KRB EZHILFEZ 45
FlEE - G2 mik it £ oGS
EMGEBRERBE S UL FEGFER
L K HL A i R o

o 008 55 A M R AURIE
Wik

BAAMERHAARBERE G
B AR A B R T 5 R A RN R A (A
R B) 2 % 8 2R fin AR & A B R -
DA 55 A5 R 3R A Hh ORI 4 F 19 B
T i S FL R i SR T B R T A B
AR PR ) o DA AR A B S R S A A
U B I Y TR R A

B Bl 2 ¥ AT

AR 2 FAE T ARAR T 2 A % B 5 5
BeMBRERERE A WREE S WHE
Z TG A ) A B AR o TR AR
ot A& o A9 A% BRI AE AN 3 7 i 2 T R
B HAMAE TN £ B EBURIEE TR - A
B AR A o LA 'R A 2 (R
AR A D) AT A AR o R A YER
SRS A% BT 7 SR B A HE AT 8 % L AE W2 AT
FIE AL o A RE L % 4F AR IS
T A RS R BRI AF & P 2 T E o

Tomson Group Limited i LA A R4y W 50




51

ndependent Auditor’s Report

B B Sl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
31st March, 2011
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onsolidated Income Statement

a4 Ak

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HZE _“F—FF+_H =+—HILHFE

2010 2009
N
Notes HKS$’000 HK$000
Bt 7t T C Ti#T
Gross proceeds from operations KR8 I A AR 8&9 3,718,737 703,475
Revenue A 8 3,533,110 661,113
Cost of sales FER N (977,084) (181,861)
Gross profit £ H| 2,556,026 479,252
Net gain in investments held T B P i 4 1 R
for trading 158,433 23,722
Other income HoAh e A 10 81,888 24,499
Other gains and losses HoAth ik %5 K 548 11 (3,854) 5,406
Selling expenses e A (343,088) (121,817)
Administrative expenses T (180,757) (147,740)
Net gain on disposal and fair value B"EWEDE RAFE
changes of investment properties S5 W) B AR 2 U g TR AR 17 184,167 2,950,178
Finance costs il 2 12 (56,070) (21,700)
2,396,745 3,191,800
Share of results of associates AL B % N T 2 HE A 1,451 (2,017)
Share of results of jointly controlled FEAG G822
entities 11,917 1,063
Profit before taxation 5 Bt 1 ¥4s A 13 2,410,113 3,190,846
Taxation i JH 14 (1,435,583) (1,798,059)
Profit for the year AF B i A 974,530 1,392,787
Profit for the year attributable to: MEAGAE R A IR
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIL EEE X DN 860,018 1,387,406
Non-controlling interests I 2 T e AR i 114,512 5,381
974,530 1,392,787
Earnings per share (HK cents) R BLR] CAALD 16
— Basic — A 62.71 103.96
— Diluted — #EE AR 62.57 103.79
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #ZE _-F—FF+_H =+ —HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2010 2009
R R ZERENF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T# T
Profit for the year 4 JE Vi ) 974,530 1,392,787
Other comprehensive (expenses) JC b 2 (BH 52 ) Wt
income
Exchange differences arising from P IR AR 2 T S S
translation of:
— jointly controlled entities — 5B 16,281 247
— other foreign operations — HoAth Vi A1 S5 337,204 11,279
Gain on changes in fair value of AL G A T B E A
available-for-sale investments Pl & 5,113 34,772
Share of other comprehensive income JRE A1k B 88 A ) 22 F Al A T i AR
of associates 639 73
Reclassification adjustments: T S A
— Release from reserve on acquisition — B E Y ERE A
upon sale of properties held W B it 45
for sale 10,084 1,681
— Release of exchange differences — i R 22 R
upon:
— dissolution of a subsidiary — fifE A — T B D = (6,084)
— dissolution of a jointly —MRE— A E R
controlled entity - (5,563)
— disposal of an associate — b — [ B E A A - 735
Other comprehensive income A B At 2 THT i AR
for the year 369,321 37,140
Total comprehensive income AF B 4 i B 2 A8 A
for the year 1,343,851 1,429,927
Total comprehensive income JRE A1k 22 T Wi A AR AR AN R
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RS FIRERS A N 1,214,844 1,424,017
Non-controlling interests I ¥ B I R 4 129,007 5,910
1,343,851 1,429,927
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
O W B R E

At 31st December, 2010 A —F—F4FE+ - H=+1+—H

2010 2009
N
Notes HK$’°000 HK$°000
Bt it T#x T T
Non-Current Assets W
Fixed assets i 72 G
— Investment properties —HREY % 17 5,853,656 5,544,960
— Property, plant and equipment St/ERN ¥ E T 18 363,294 380,164
Lease premium for land + b 19 72,489 249,420
Goodwill 7R 22 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets I FIE B TE 31 3,054 2,090
Interests in associates i /NP £ 23 34,210 32,086
Interests in jointly controlled entities hEEE¥EZER 24 1,023,246 159,930
Available-for-sale investments Ak R E 25 137,745 132,632
Pledged bank deposit A ERAT F7 5K 36 47,583 =
7,568,565 6,534,570
Current Assets W) ¥
Lease premium for land + S 19 6,720 6,426
Properties under development B 20 2,412,965 450,130
Deposit paid for land use right + R AT AT 21 2,157,192 1,991,218
Properties held for sale fFEME 3,147,792 3,281,518
Trade and other receivables and JE S G Rk~ oAt R
prepayments HR R R FELA R 27(a) 249,169 283,370
Investments held for trading mERE 26 498,103 80,387
Inventories 8 27(b) 26,217 23,001
Prepaid income tax TE A T A5 B 201,138 142,868
Cash and bank balances 4 KRAT A 8 27(d) 3,201,637 2,728,657
11,900,933 8,987,575
Current Liabilities T URER
Trade and other payables and accruals JEAT B2 5 Rk - HoAth g AT
MR M TH 4 22 27(c) 718,867 636,560
Receipts in advance T K IE 669,612 1,590,247
Tax payables JRE A 5 JE 2,607,325 1,335,746
Current portion of long-term bank A SR AT 1 B 2 B3 &8 10
borrowings 30 129,717 11,360
4,125,521 3,573,913
Net Current Assets W) ¥ 7,775,412 5,413,662
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities H8 % A DU B £ 15,343,977 11,948,232
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At 31st December, 2010 A —F4FE+_"H=+—H

2010 2009
%% —TTAE
Notes HKS$’°000 HK$°000
Bt it T Ti# T
Capital and Reserves A K fii A
Share capital A 28 695,790 673,769
Share premium and reserves B A0y v A e fth A 9,730,648 8,592,023
Equity attributable to owners of AN ) HE 4 15 A A HE £
the Company 10,426,438 9,265,792
Non-controlling interests IF 122 1B 1B SR 4 1,050,674 344,539
Total Equity BB 23 11,477,112 9,610,331
Non-Current Liabilities I Bh 4
Long-term bank borrowings 1= B AR AT 15 3K 30 1,923,349 319,209
Deferred tax liabilities R S A8 TH £ £ 31 1,943,516 2,018,692
3,866,865 2,337,901
15,343,977 11,948,232
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for AEMBREENR _F——F =H=1—
issue by the Board of Directors on 31st March, 2011. H 48 el 2 5 Jm b 30 452 1 T 8% o
Hsu Feng Tong Albert
% RN
Chairman Vice-Chairman
FHE e
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(O]

(d)

(e)

®

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B Bt 82 W) R

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference between the
aggregate amount of the then share capital and share premium account of
Tomson Investment Limited, the former holding company of the Group,
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued pursuant to a
scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The amounts
represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained
earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the relevant government
authorities. This reserve is distributable only for the future development
or expansion of that company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from retained
earnings by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) subsidiaries of
the Company. In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their
profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital
subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

Reserve on acquisition arose on acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiary, being the excess of the fair value over the carrying value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable to the
additional interests of the subsidiary acquired on the date of acquisition.
When the identifiable assets are revalued or disposed of, the relevant
amount of the reserve on acquisition is released to the consolidated
income statement.

Of the retained earnings of HK$5,781,407,000 (2009:
HK$5,165,733,000), HK$11,266,000 (2009: Nil) are attributable
to jointly controlled entities of the Group and accumulated losses of
HK$7,498,000 (2009: HK$8,949,000) are attributable to associates of
the Group.
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onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B Bl AU R R

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4F+ " H =+ —HILFE

2010 2009
e Sk 22 ZEFNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before taxation W o 71 Vi 2,410,113 3,190,846
Adjustments for: LN
Share of results of associates JRE A W A W] 2 64K (1,451) 2,017
Share of results of jointly controlled entities MM & & b 3 2 %47 (11,917) (1,063)
Release from reserve on acquisition upon B o B Wy 2 IR S oA

sales of properties held for sale 10,084 1,681
Gain on disposal of an associate B — M s A W 2 i AR - (3,185)
Gain on dissolution of a jointly controlled fif B — T B A3 2 iR

entity = (2,735)
Interest on bank loans AT EFFE 56,070 21,700
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary fife 15— (] B B ) 2 Wit ik - (6,084)
Depreciation of property, plant and L EN & EiN

equipment 24,992 25,133
Amortisation of lease premium for land R RN R 6,716 6,425
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts and IR S R A SO R

bad debts written off, net of recovery EL 1B i [m] 5 JE 1,365 6,145
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, SRV CiL/ERN =&Y |

plant and equipment and lease premium Fo MR B 2 R 2 s 4R 1

on land 11,698 828
Net gain on disposal and fair value changes  #% & ¥ 3 1 B B /3 F- (52 ) 7€ =

of investment properties Z WA R (184,167) (2,950,178)
Unrealised gain on fair value changes of HEREATHEHEEZ

investments held for trading R (141,991) (19,036)
Interest income FLE A (48,520) (16,808)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments  AJ {8 £t & 2 it B ft A (24,951) (2,557)
Operating cash flows before movements BEECEHN RS

in working capital BeRA 2,108,041 253,129
Decrease in properties held for sale HREYERD 834,696 24,347
Decrease (increase) in trade and other JRE W B 5 W~ EL At B oA MR K

receivables and prepayments BT BRI (45 ) 43,815 (34,785)
Increase in deposit paid for land use right I b I REC AT ET 4 1 (90,129) (1,135,976)
Increase in investments held for trading FRERE R (275,725) (36,745)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 78 (B wb (2,340) 407
Increase in trade and other payables and JEAT B 5 Bk~ At B A°F B K

accruals R TR 2 6,980 31,553
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance TR I (B4 #8 (981,206) 1,549,232
Addition in properties under development B P SEH (2,222,369) (175,863)
Cash (used in) from operations MEEH TR EA 28 4E (578,237) 475,299
Taxes paid E AR (358,083) (315,374)
Interest paid B AHFLE (55,571) (25,540)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BB () BBl e

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 (991,891) 134,385
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows m?d
BBl &R R

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

2010 2009
e S 22 “ETHE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Wit T Fit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRI
Interest received 2 i B 48,547 16,934
Dividend from/return on investment in RGBS EREBA R E
a jointly controlled entity [ % 651 9,831
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ] it ) 8 £ & 2 B Bt A 24,951 2,557
Proceeds on disposal of an associate B — s A R 2 B A 308 = 3,931
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and ~ tHE W - FE K &
equipment and lease premium for land + s #E B ) B A BOR 1,081 2,834
Proceeds on dissolution of a jointly fif e — B8 226 2 I8 K0R
controlled entity — 27,618
Purchase of property, plant and equipment W E )3 - BE KM (7,364) (17,021)
Repayment of (payment for) lease premium ~ ## (G fF) £ HufH & %
for land 175,640 (173,994)
Addition in investment properties REREYE (4,940) (42,198)
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties  tH 5 1% & ) 3£ 2 7 15 3K 1 88,361 1,316,014
Net cash outflow on acquisition of assets 375 4 M I — [RD RS I ) O
through acquisition of a subsidiary ZBLE L 40 (209,968) =
Repayment from an associate — B & N ) 2 iR R - 873
Increase in pledged bank deposit L K7 SR AT A7 5 (47,583) =
Investment in a jointly controlled entity naBtERE (835,769) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BevEE I O 1) Ak 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B4 (766,393) 1,147,379
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ¥ B
Cash dividend paid e R SR E (44,259) (16,163)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest B AT I 42 M I SR 2 2 BB (224,391) (677)
Repayment of bank borrowings EBBITIHE X (106,132) (443,031)
New bank loans raised WG SRAT HK 1,816,038 387,368
Repurchase of shares [7] i R 17y (9,939) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling A FBPBOR R £ 1) B
interest 711,519 =
Proceeds from exercising of share options A7 I PO R 22 B A 0 = 4,332
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) L A (BT ) Z
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BlA W H 2,142,836 (68,171)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND e RS S HEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 Im ¥ %5 384,552 1,213,593
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BR—=H—-HZBEKBE
AT 1ST JANUARY SEEH 2,728,657 1,513,254
EFFECT OF FOREIGN bl LR R
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 88,428 1,810
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BREZA=Z+—H2Z84
AT 31ST DECEMBER, BB eFHEH
represented by cash and bank balances BB 4 e SR AT 45 % 3,201,637 2,728,657
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A o W05 Wk B G

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4F+ " H =+ —HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year were property development and investment,
hospitality and leisure activities, manufacturing of PVC pipes,
securities trading and investment holding.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and

revised HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1st January, 2010. The requirements in Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 27 (Revised) “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” in relation to accounting for
changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after control is
obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also applied
prospectively by the Group on or after 1st January, 2010.

As there was no business combination during the current year in
which HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are applicable,
the application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and
the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs had no effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current
or prior accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by future
transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised)
and the consequential amendments to the other HKFRSs are
applicable.

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS
17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. Before the amendment to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
presented as lease premium for land in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendment has removed such a
requirement. Instead, the amendment requires the classification
of leasehold land to be based on the general principles set out in
HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie
with the lessor or the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 17
“Leases”, the Group reassessed the classification of land elements
of unexpired leases at 1st January, 2010 based on information
which existed at the inception of these leases. The application of
the amendment has had no effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current and prior accounting

period.

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKEFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets®

Financial Instruments*

HKEFRS 9

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets’

6

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W B B B i

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F T4+ H =+ —HIL4F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®
HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 or
Ist January, 2011, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February,
2010

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets” mainly deal with the measurement of deferred
tax for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”.
Based on the amendments, for the purposes of measuring deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
the investment properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
If the presumption is not rebutted, the Directors anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 may have
a significant impact on deferred tax recognised for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009)” introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments
(as revised in November 2010)” adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in the consolidated income statement. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in the consolidated income
statement.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Directors
anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual periods beginning
on Ist January, 2013. Based on the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 31st December, 2010, the Directors
anticipate that the application of the HKFRS 9 will affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments and may affect the classification of other financial
assets but not the Group’s financial liabilities.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W B B B i

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the excess/
shortfall of the consideration paid over/below the fair values of
the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional
interests in a subsidiary acquired is recognised as goodwill or
discount on acquisition. Excess of fair values over the carrying
amounts of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to
the additional interests is debited to reserve on acquisition. On
subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or revaluation or disposal of
the underlying assets of that subsidiary, the attributable reserve
on acquisition is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal or gain or loss on revaluation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to Ist January, 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able
to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1st
January, 2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry goodwill at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

67  Annual Report 2010 4 FE 4R #

4. BEAER @)

[k ¢

PRI i i 5 — B R O R RS
ER TR R ek B A %
TAE—H — H AT > J5H48 SO A R
W R e A S T A A R
AR 98- 00 = /A |
T

HoZFFThE—HA—-HEH > AEH
71 T R B AS B AT T 2 BB M s 1R
N

Wt S S5 BT EE A 19 B AS AL B AE AR
FMHAR DR B 25 -

ABER TS - B E R 2 R
& o Bl 2 T A O P E A T R 2K
a2 2% A I B R R B A B
GRELEA o FEN R REELE
AL AR AT WA B SR A B
SR % B AL AT RE Hh B R A AT
AR BB o BRI BUAF B TR i g 2
TR E o PR T Bl 2 B A
BB R B U AR R A ROAI A AT
(EL BN R o i B < 7 A B0 22 T i ] 8
B FLBR T > B8 4R ST
E WUARAT: o] 53 L 2 w% B AL 2 P B 2
MR T (B - FLAR HI 4% 5% B0 0 4% JH 7
Mz T B 2 BG4 20 T 2 % B 2 A
B o AT A A R (R 1R B A
AR AR FEREE RN
TP A A% S ] 43¢ (] o

T FEAR B A B B AR R
JE AL B AR AL P R e B R A DL E
2 AR SR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement. When a group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement. When a group entity transacts
with a jointly controlled entity of the Group, profits or losses
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represent investments held for trading. The Group classified such
financial assets as held for trading investments as they has been
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statement includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposit, cash and bank balances, amounts due
from associates and jointly controlled entities) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include that Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the borrower being probable to enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the loans and
receivables are impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are reduced by
the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the loans and receivables
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-for-maturity investments and loans
and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment reserve is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

Annual Report 2010 4F BE4E $it

F R a R )

£ TH )
W ()
Bk B MEW I ok (4)

AR BUI(E R o A A A AR e
RE LA I 1R > BE M 4R 7 i i B A
TR 2 B < Ui & DL AU R R 3R 4T B
ZHBEHMZ £ -

990 (EL M 4R B R B AR R AR
PR BT ME R R B MRk R
i E WSO AR BR A LR T8 (i 7 o 48
i R AR 0 BB o 88 M 1A 2 R T {2
B & R AR A A R AR o E IR 5
R 7 B Al B S BR R B A AR T ik
(] By > CHL I I J8 A S PR S o A LR
W 171 2 Rl © 4 09 3KH > R R A KR &
MPERA -

"W HE % 1B Hb e B W i [ < AR B
. ffE B8 W (E AR P 38 2k 2 S AF A B By
BURCRI=N 751589 i K St N ik IR 57
BB WA B O B I R 2 H 2
R T (B AN A5 B R SR B E RF 2 B

] Hy £ 1Y 5 ¥t i

(ATt B E R | A AT AR E A
HR G 2 Bl ik B IS R BOR
B S [ 450 EHAF AR 3R 2 B &
EIFHAZFIHZEEIULTE

T o R S [T i B B E
HRVERHE o A FEZ BB A
2 T W i A R R S A B A A R
B HEZWHEE O E S e
AT AE > T AR A P B T R
B2l an Bk 1R g R BURE AR
aHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not reverse in the consolidated income statement
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment reserve.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

4. BEAEEOR @)

£ T H )
W 58 R (A7)
7 e Hy £ B 5 ()

ATk A B o (E A B
R B AT B 2 AR A - B B A
VEE-S NRCRIEE & SRICIRC - E
B | 2 AT AT i A 4R 7 S A
R HERY o A BRI 2 W E
e 1551 AN & LAAR ) T S AR S AR
R o o (E G 1R AR 1 (H Z AT AT 4
Jin 7 At T i A e R I R 4%

A 1 B T 5 5l 4 T 3 i A HLOR fE AT
SR EZ AT ERARE
TR S 93 R % B A AT o] E A K
HEHE -

WA R R W% A B
SR s Tt A5 T AR o (B
15 B B DL 7 MR T B 4% ) R B S
B BLAT T 3 1) R B B2 Al EEH
BB R EBEZ ZHHE o 2% W
(Ll 5 A 7 JEL A S ) 4% Jm]

Y 5 £ 00 B e AR it 27

HiAE B BT 2 M R R KR A
EoE kLS SRR VAR IR S i - i
SLEA RS A OB AR RS I 2 E M

e A 55 5 TG AT o] W] 8 W A 4R I
AT R R A (RRFIBR LT A B R
B)ZEH -

A 55 T A 5 BB AE R A R B IR K
T Al R ARK R B SRAT A K AR IR
BT ) 2 3 D48 P A R

Tomson Group Limited i LA A R4y W 72




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W B B B i

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is recognised
and deducted directly in share capital for par value and in share
premium for total amount paid in excess of par value. The same
amount recognised in share capital will be transferred from
retained earnings to capital redemption reserve. No gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses other than goodwill and financial
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
the consolidated income statement for the period in which they
arise.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Transfer from investment properties to properties held for
sale will be made when there is a change of use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to sale. The fair
value of the related property will be transferred as the cost of the
properties held for sale, any difference between the carrying value
and the fair value of the related property at the date of transfer is
recognised in consolidated income statement.

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and
equipment will be made when there is a change in use as
evidenced by commencement of owner occupation. The fair value
of that item will be transferred as the cost of property, plant and
equipment subject to appropriate depreciation. For property
interest held under operating lease previously classified as an
investment property and accounted for as if it were a finance lease
under the fair value model, the Group shall continue to account
for the lease as a finance lease, even if subsequent event changes
the nature of the property interest so that it is no longer classified
as investment property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits is expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other than construction
work-in-progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. When the construction is completed and
the asset is available for use, the related cost is transferred to
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the following policy.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets other
than construction work-in-progress less their estimated residual
value over their estimated useful lives by equal annual instalments
at the following rates per annum:

Leaschold land and
buildings
Plant and equipment

2% to 4% or over the terms
of the relevant lease

4% to 13%

Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40%

equipment and

motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development (current
asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost and estimated
net realisable value. Properties under development which
are intended for sale in the ordinary course of business upon
completion are classified as current assets.

Properties transferred from investment properties to properties
held for sale are stated at deemed cost on date of transfer.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discount.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised only
when the respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers. Payments received from purchasers prior to this
stage are recorded as receipts in advance under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Revenue from sales of investments held for trading is recognised
when the sales contract has become unconditional.

Property management fee income is recognised on an appropriate
basis over the relevant period in which the services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (foreign
currencies translation reserves). Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in jointly controlled entities, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve. If a director or an employee chooses to exercise
options, the related share option reserve is transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the related share
option reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
terms on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “lease premium for land” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease terms on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value (Note 22).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to sharecholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Categories of financial instruments
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from associates and jointly
controlled entities, pledged bank deposit, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure
to financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

Market risks
(i)  Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”) which
is a foreign currency other than functional currency
(i.e. HKD) of the relevant group entities (see Note
27(d)). No analysis is presented on HKD against
USD as HKD is pegged to USD and management of
the Company believes the foreign exchange exposure
is insignificant. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposits in the PRC and variable-
rate bank borrowings (see Note 30 for details of
these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at variable-rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arises.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

7. BT H @)

b)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the market deposit rate and the PRC
official lending rate arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates risks for
bank balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared on the balance at the end
of reporting period. 100 basis point increase or
decrease are used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
risk on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 100
basis points (2009: 30 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December,
2010 would increase/decrease by HK$24,563,000
(2009: increase/decrease by HK$5,538,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on its variable-rate bank borrowings,
if interest rates had been 100 basis points (2009: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31st December, 2010 would decrease/increase
by HK$16,014,000 (2009: decrease/increase by
HK$1,322,000).
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H )

b) Financial risks management objectives and b) BB R BE 4 B OB R R
policies (Continued) (%)

i % B 4)
(iii) M BT F5 MR B

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group’s equity instruments (classified as
investments held for trading and available-for-sale
investments) expose the Group to equity price risks.
Management intends to manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risk profiles.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of reporting period for the Group’s equity instruments
excluding available-for-sale investments measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% (2009: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 would increase/decrease by
HK$41,592,000 (2009: increase/decrease
approximately by HK$6,712,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of investments held for
trading; and

. other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$8,821,000 (2009:
profit increase/decrease approximately by
HK$8,309,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed available-for-sale
investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not representative of the Group’s equity risk as it only
reflects the impact of equity price changes to equity
securities held at the year end but not the exposure
during the year.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2010 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets in the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management will
monitor the payment status of customers and perform
necessary procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover any overdue
debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
minimal.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

Furthermore, trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers spread across diverse industries.

Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity risk as
it has sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations when

they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
generated from operations which are deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations and to
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
will consider to raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.

7. BT H @)

b)
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risks (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

7. ST H )
b) B R B 4% B H B B R

()

L B 4 B (4

The following table details the Group’s remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on

the ecarliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash

flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the

end of the reporting period.

It 1Y B¢ <8 JE U B A

R RS A G B JE AT AR RS
R8T & R - it
YRR A G S T fE g BEOR
R BB B R BRI 2 B
B B AR B B B 4 A R AT
R L AR R A & 2 B
B-EMBRERFHAEL
I $ R - R i ER BB DL
WIR Z F 245 1 o

Weighted Total Total
average effective ~ Lessthan 3 months 6 months undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months  to 6 months to lyear over 1year  cash flows amount
HET-¥ =MH ZHAE AHH KBB4
RS UYL AR -4 UL WERAE  KesK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fitx Fitx Fi#tx Tt Tt Fitx
As at 31st December, 2010 —F—%4
+=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial ~ F47 2 i # £ 1§
liabilities
Trade and other payables [ ' 3 M3k )t
ot e 5 3 s 67,008 17,568 544,492 - 629,068 629,068
Bank borrowings RATfE K
~ variable rate -#8 5.50% 29,141 99,896 115207 2,241,140 2485384 2,053,066
96,149 117,464 659,699 2,241,140 3,114,452 2,682,134
As at 31st December, 2009 —FF L4
+ZA=Z+—H
Non-derivative financial ~ FEA7 2 3 61 f§
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ FEF B 5} fR 3 &
FoAl R 3R = 47,581 51,929 469,189 - 568,699 568,699
Bank borrowings WATIER
— variable rate -4 5.41% 4,388 15,748 8,777 374,342 403,255 330,569
51,969 67,677 477,966 374,342 971,954 899,268
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

V)

d)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could change if
there are movements in floating interest rates subsequent to
the reporting period.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market prices;
and

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices);

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H @)
d) Fair value measurements recognised in the d) 5 W B IR DL W e Y
consolidated statement of financial position im0,

(Continued)

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from . BEMATEFETIEA
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset A FE AR $5 T B A T 35 B
or liability that are not based on observable market (M B A BUR) < &
data (unobservable inputs). A BN E B -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level T R o A A I M B

2 or 3 fair value measurements financial instruments. B AN T EHFESM T

E‘ o
Level 1
W
2010 2009
e S 22 ZEENF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Ti# T
Financial assets at fair value %A AN 2% 2 8
through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets R JEfT AL A G
held for trading 498,103 80,387

Available-for-sale financial assets W {3 Hj £ W %5 % &

Listed equity securities T AR R S5 88,208 83,095

Total gy 586,311 163,482

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the both
years.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS

AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the following
headings:

(i) Property investment

—  represents revenue from property management and
rental income

(ii) Property development and trading

—  represents gross revenue received and receivable from
sales of properties

(iii) Industrial operations

= represents the gross revenue from sale of manufactured

PVC pipes
(iv) Leisure

= represents the income from golf club operations and
its related services

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
received and receivable from investments held for trading under
the business of securities trading, in addition to the above
aggregated revenue.

Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business for the
year ended 31st December, 2010 consist of the followings:

8. &R WA AW B A

W A8 AR 45 TE I A8 %R
() PERE
— IR EESHIA LH S K
A

Gi) PIRBIR KB
—  IEWEHEZ R

Y&
(i) T3EEH
- H#HERREZBEG
Al

Giv) 1 B SR A

- HERERWRRERYG X
AR R R 5 W A

BrDLE WA BBER SN > K88 i Ak SRS
AEEFEEARE P HERERE
Jir 45 2 Wi Be B i AR i 4

WE-F-FE+ A=+ —HIL
45 I 2 A RSB W2
LI T 5 45 1

2010 2009

T

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#x T

Revenue from sale of properties HEYEZ WA 3,267,793 419,898

Revenue from sale of goods PR T 2 U 49,329 43,868
Revenue from rendering of services o5 T < TR g S5 4 43 1 s

from golf club operations Z YA 79,428 90,257

Revenue from property rental and Yy ERH & B BB A

management fee 136,560 107,090

Revenue LN 3,533,110 661,113

Gross proceeds from sale of securities 5 76 75 2 #UK £ 185,627 42,362

Gross proceeds from operations 588 W ot A A 3,718,737 703,475
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % _F T4+ H =+ —HIL4F

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on
information reported to the chief operating decision makers, the
Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. In addition to those set
out in Note 8(i) to (iv), the Group’s operating segments under
HKFRS 8 include securities trading segment which is dealing in
investments held for trading.

9. BUEF

AL EE RSB RRE
V54 e B ZE AR REAN H R ) 2
YR H (RARN A ATE ) fril
&2 R F oo BR B EE8() £ (iv)
Gh 5 AN E AR IR R B i e HID D
FetEE N RO HEGERE
ZEBKEENE

2010 SRR
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment and Trading  Operations Leisure Trading Total
ES 11
mERE Rk LEEH WAEE  BHHWH it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T T T#x T T#x
GROSS PROCEEDS B WA A
FROM OPERATIONS - -ABBA
SEGMENT REVENUE 136,560 3,267,793 49,329 79,428 185,627 3,718,737
RESULTS £
Segment profit (loss) ABEF (EE) 258795 2,014,600 (2,518) (5,026) 158,245 2,424,096
Other unallocated income A 708
N 79,399
Unallocated expenses AT 8L (50,680)
Finance costs EiS<g i (56,070)
2,396,745
Share of results of associates JRE A W
ZEH 1,451
Share of results of jointly e R
controlled entities b 11,917
Profit before taxation B B 1 ¥ A 2,410,113
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

9. HRER )

2009 e =2k
Property
Property  Development Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading Total
ES 9
ES S Rt TEEH  HEEE  #ERE At
HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
FibT T FiT Fib T FibT
GROSS PROCEEDS ML i A
FROM OPERATION - - BA
SEGMENT REVENUE 107,090 419,898 43,808 90,257 42,362 703,475
RESULTS ES

Segment profit (loss) SRR (B1H) 2,995,681 216,182 (4,302) (13,499) 23497 3,217,559

Other unallocated income HfA T8
A 36,878
Unallocated expenses w153 (40,937)
Finance costs BEEH (21,700)
3,191,800

Share of results of associates R Al 3 5 A )
ZER (2,017)

Share of results of jointly HEAG 58 3k
controlled entities ¥R 1,063
Profit before taxation W ot i k5 ) 3,190,846

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is different
from the reported revenue in the consolidated income statement,
the accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. For the
details of revenue from each type of business and reconciliation of
segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of HK$3,533,110,000
(2009: HK$661,113,000), please refer to Note 8.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and jointly controlled
entities, other non-recurring income and expenses and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

B o3 A M A B AE A R 26 R R A
WA Z 255 XORE SN > BB 2
& UK B A AR [ SR 42 & R EUR
AHTR] o £ B ZEB AR A B FEIE S o Bk
A HLASE ET A 3,533,110,00095 76 (—
EZILE  661,113,000% 0) Z B IR
WA HOR B RS o

o U B O 48) 95 2% 70 B 64
A @A wHA B RAT BUS AR -
P~ R A T A T 2 B AL B
26 2 SR - A IR AR PR A K B
AR o BT AT S 2R
BRI B B SE BT A 2w -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continucd) 9. HRER )

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief FESERRE IFR AR EE 2 5
operating decision maker review the consolidated financial B B BRI DA R AR A B K A e R R
position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance. The MRB > M M2 BEE KA
management is more focus on the results of the Group. B EHERAETAER S -
Other information 3 Aib % R
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss: FrESBEG 2 SO

Property

Property  Development ~ Industrial Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading Other Total
HES 1

B3 Rk TREE O WARE  EAEN 4] it
HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

Ti#r T#x T#x T#x Ti#r Ti#r Ti#r

2010 ZF-%
Depreciation of property, plant W RERRHTE

and equipment 1,883 2,020 4105 15,581 - 1,403 24,992
Amortisation of lease premium HHHEEREH

for land - - 721 5,990 - 5 6,716
Allowance for bad and doubtful RIRE RO S

debts and bad debes written off, E MBI 08

net of recovery (4) = 1,365 4 = = 1,365
Net gain on disposal and fair value RENELERATE

changes of investment properties FHEE NGTE 184,167 - - - - - 184,167
Unrealised gain on fair value changes BEREATERDEE

of investments held for trading LRERW R - - - - 141,991 S 141,991
2009 “RELE
Depreciation of property, plant and W~ RERRMHTE

equipment 2,000 1,949 4,009 15,833 = 1342 25,133
Amortisation of lease premium for land ~ + 3 B % 85 - = 093 5727 - 5 6,425
Allowance for bad and doubtful debrs TRAIRE: i SR o

and bad debs written off 1,578 - 4,567 - - - 6,145
Net gain on disposal and fair value REMELERATE

changes of investment properties BHELZNETE 2950178 - - - - - 2,950,178
Untealised gain on fir value changes of &R EAFHBH &L

investments held for trading CRER G - - - - 19,036 = 19,036
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, no single customer
contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, revenue from two
largest customers in the property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$82,402,000 and HK$109,201,000
which contributed to approximately 12.46% and 16.52%
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations, assets and revenue are substantially
situated in or derived from the mainland China. The Group’s
revenue of property investment and property development and
trading from external customers is based on location of properties
sold and leased out. Revenue of industrial operations from
external customers is based on the location of customers. Revenue
of leisure from external customers is based on the location of
services provided.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and
available-for-sale investments, amounted to HK$7,427,766,000
(2009: HK$6,399,848,000) by geographical location of the assets
and operation of the associates and jointly controlled entities are
substantially situated in the mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set out in
Note 8.

9. HRER )

HHEEEPFZER

HE F—-FFE+ __H=+—HI
TR IR K A AR
AE B 10% L I o

BEZZNFETH=1T—HILF
BE > N 2 R T B A b R TR
KEF 15 2 e A 4 Il 582,402,000
# 90 %109,201,000% 7T > {5 A S H 2>
U A5 Fl #)12.46% % 16.52% ©

Hb Bk 7y 350 B

ARG 2 BT - AR M EE
FER SR A B OK B o AR Y S
S WSEYE S 3N & R PN
BV I Y S BTy 0 T
EXEBH I BEWALEF Z P e
o5 Y A S5 S A B B WA % £ 14 AR
B5 2 P e H o

AEMBEERRERM S FEFRDE
FE (N B 35 9% 4 Bl JE & 7 K nl it B
&) &457,427,766,000% o0 (- FEE
JLAE ¢ 6,399,848,000% 7T) K B 45 /A
A LA A B T B AR
RO B o

A AR T R S BT 2 A A i T
A B EES o

OTHER INCOME 10. H:fis e A
2010 2009
2% CTTAF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T C Ti# T
Other income included: HoAth Use A ELHE -
Interest income NSY YN 48,520 16,808
Dividends from available-for-sale At EREZ R
investments — listed A — i 5,114 2,557
Dividends from available-for-sale At ERE Z R
investments — unlisted A —FE LT 19,837 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

11.

12.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

11. oAb e 2% B s 1

2010 2009
—F %5 ZERFIE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x Fi#T
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts i 38 HR 4% i S 58 MR B 815
and bad debts written off, 1 B Ui [ 3R
net of recovery (1,365) (6,145)
Net loss on disposal/write off of W e RE &
property, plant and equipment A M L B
and lease premium on land Z R A (11,698) (828)
Gain on disposal of an associate H B — R A B 2 Wi i - 3,185
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary figt 5 — T B JB 2 B 2 i A - 6,084
Gain on dissolution of a jointly it i — [ 5 A 2 2 s
controlled entity - 2,735
Net exchange gain BEE 52, o i 5% A 9,209 375
(3,854) 5,406
FINANCE COSTS 12. ¥ %
2010 2009
SRR ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ZE it . 4F A 2 B fi 42 2
within five years W|ATERZFE 58,269 25,540
Less: interest capitalised (Note 20) W EAAL R (M FE20) (2,199) (3,840)
56,070 21,700

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific
borrowings.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BB ny %t A
2010 2009
“E R ZEEIE
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#T Tl

Profit before taxation has been arrived & Fd /if % Fll 2 F0B% -

at after charging:

Staff costs EEWI %N 70,377 61,885
Provident fund scheme contributions A %& 4 5 #1447k 5,476 4,720
Total staff costs (Note) B A (M aE) 75,853 66,605
Auditors’ remuneration 2% Sl P 4 2,929 2,622
Depreciation of property, plant L E NN G R
and equipment 24,992 25,133
Amortisation of lease premium for -+ M AH B T
land (included in (FFAATEL# )
administrative expenses) 6,716 6,425
Minimum lease payment under g Tz BARH &
operating leases 9,638 6,603
Cost of inventories recognised R E § P =g N
as expenses 949,124 157,849
and after crediting: DA N
Gross rental income from investment % & ¥ ZEHH 4 Uit A #AH
properties 119,666 90,450
Less: direct operating expenses from o FNEARSRAZ
investment properties that REYE B
generated rental income o
during the year (17,936) (15,656)

Net rental income from investment B M WA A

properties 101,730 74,794
Dividends from investments held FREREZRERA GEA

for trading (included in net gain i EBE 45 )

in investments held for trading) 3,262 454
Net realised (loss) gain on disposal HEREY RS2 ()

of investment properties i #i A (FEA BB W2

(included in net gain on disposal i T o (8 5 ) 2 AR

and fair value changes of PAE XY

investment properties) (7,886) 92,557
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BB w e A a2)
Note: MEE -
The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors as follows: ME LRAGHEMFHEEZM SN -
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension Total
Fees benefits scheme emoluments
Name of Director E R ] e 2 Bk
A W Be I fib 45 A wl 8 ek TN 6 A4 %
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7 T#x T#x T#
2010 ZEF %Y
Executive directors AT
Madam Hsu Feng G - 9,597 12 9,609
Mr. Tong Albert e P s = 2,523 12 2,535
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles U Tk = 1,448 12 1,460
Mr. Yeung Kam Hoi o 0 8 5 A = 1,012 5 1,017
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen SHEIRFLEAE = 1,488 = 1,488
Independent non-executive directors M 3. JE 7 3 ¢
Madam Tung Wai Yee HEML L 144 11 - 155
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIS SR L 102 - - 102
Mr. Lee Chan Fai B9 Pt 102 - - 102
348 16,079 41 16,468
2009 “EENF
Executive directors AT
Madam Hsu Feng G/ = 8,932 12 8,944
Mr. Tong Albert ¥ Al e A = 1,801 12 1,813
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles e =S s - 886 12 898
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen HEIR A A - 1,471 - 1,471
Independent non-executive directors 1 v. Jf P47 7 3¢
Madam Tung Wai Yee E-3 R/ 144 - - 144
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar HRIKF SR 100 = = 100
Mr. Lee Chan Fai ZE PR S 100 - - 100
344 13,090 36 13,470
No Directors waived any emoluments for both years. T TR A A A 40 2 = i ZE AT AT PN 4 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, four (2009: three) of
the five highest paid individuals of the Group were Directors. The
aggregate emoluments of the remaining one (2009: two) highest
paid individual was as follows:

13. BRBE Wil A 42)

BE2_F-FTHE+_H=+—HI
AR FEAC K I A B 2 L N+
hZ A (ZFFIE: =) AE
H oo Hg— 0 (ZFFIFE W) &
(31 PN oS R

2010 2009
T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Ti# T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, BAFE - B REEM - H AR
other allowances and benefits in kind X B ¥ Fl 25 1,212 2,199
Provident fund scheme contributions 23 & 4 5T #1413k - 12
1,212 2,211

The number of these individuals whose emoluments fell within
the following band is as follows:

%5 N AE T 5 38 A R 2 NN T

Emoluments
4>
Number of staff
HTAY
2010 2009
e S 23 ZEEE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% JC %21,500,000%% 7T 1 2
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

14. TAXATION 14. BLB
2010 2009
—g e EEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#u
The charge comprises: XA
Hong Kong Profits Tax MG 23,587 =
PRC (other than Hong Kong) T A S 1 JE T A B m AL
Enterprise Income Tax S5 T TE W) e I 2 BUTE
calculated at tax rates prevailing Bl FFHA Z
in the respective jurisdictions (AL )
where the relevant individual 1 E TR B
group companies operate 285,768 145,108
PRC Land Appreciation Tax Hh ) b (R
(“LAT?”) 1,193,464 626,397
Dividend withholding tax =itk &) 80 517
Underprovision in prior years AL AR AN R
— PRC (other than Hong Kong) —HE (N EEEE)
Enterprise Income Tax S 7,485 209
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —H G 5,307 1
1,515,691 772,232
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 31) EIERLIA (K ) L (B aE31) (80,108) 1,025,827
Total tax charges for the year 4 B JH B S AR 1,435,583 1,798,059

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009:
16.5%). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No.
63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the
State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of
the New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations
changed the tax rate from 15% to 25% with effect from 1st
January, 2008. There will be a transitional period for enterprises
that currently receive preferential tax treatments granted by
relevant tax authorities. Enterprises that are subject to a PRC
income tax rate lower than 25% may continue to enjoy the lower
PRC income tax rate and gradually transfer to the new PRC
income tax rate within five years after the effective date of the
New Law.
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The major subsidiaries have their operations located in Pudong
New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, according to the New Law which
was effective on 1st January, 2008, the income tax rate was 18%
with effect from 1st January, 2008 and will be gradually increased
to 25% in 5 years. The income tax rate for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 is 22% (2009: 20%).

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

14. BLH (47)

T A A 2 AR P e
WA gL 2R\ F—H—
HAESZHmBE i 2 N\FE—H
— HALZ i S BB R £ 18% » I 1% it
HAFENZEE N E25% « #HE - F—
FHE+FZH=Z+—HILHEEFEZ G
BB R E522% (T FFJUAE - 20%) ©

A JE S B AR 5 R TR AR 2 BR B T

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

M Z EHRITE

2010 2009
e S 22 “EEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x F#T
Profit before taxation (excluding share BB Fil i A ( A6 45 FE A
of results of associates and jointly Big o m KA s kL)
controlled entities) 2,396,745 3,191,800
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of & 4% Hb I 15 i 2 22%
22% (2009: 20%) (Note) (ZFFIF  20%)
t B2 BLIH (M k) 527,284 638,360
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oA e 0 T s 18 2 S Y B 3,452 =
Tax effect of expenses that are not fiit 7 JE R Ui 1 I
deductible in determining taxable AT AE B BH 32
profit Z BB R B 36,766 28,709
Tax effect of deductible temporary o RR AT AR B 2 IR 2 B
difference not recognised Z B 5,283 5,192
Tax effect of income that is fiit 7 TR SR Ui ) IR O 2 1 LB
not assessable in determining W A\ 2 Bl i
taxable profit (2,412) (4,072)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B) F DA o e w8 2 B TH i 18
not recognised (2,309) (4,679)
Underprovision of income taxes AT AR B T AR BB A 2
in prior years 12,792 210
Effect on PRC LAT ot st 1 (E B 2 861,437 928,657
Dividend withholding tax i ESEAIE &) 80 517
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate JRE ) 20 o Y R B v
for deferred tax over current tax rate i BV A ) e SRR Iy
on taxable temporary differences AR 1,072 205,165
Effect of tax rate in different AN [R] A 12 HE I B R 2 R
jurisdiction (7,862) -
Tax expense for the year AF BT B X 1,435,583 1,798,059

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 31.

Note: The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the
jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are based.

O J0E B3 IH 2 I HORR B T3 -

BEE < FT BRI BT A B A s AR 4 T B
B B i 2w ISR IR 2 T AR B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

15.

16.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of 6
HK cents per share (2009: special dividend of 13.5 HK cents
per share) amounting to approximately HK$83,738,000 (2009:
HK$181,918,000) for the year ended 31st December, 2010 which
is subject to approval by the sharcholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately
HK$137,659,000 was settled in shares under the Company’s scrip
dividend scheme approved by the Company on 4th June, 2010 in
respect of the special dividend of the year ended 31st December,
2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

15. S

EFEERRMN®EE 2 -FE L+
H=+—HIEFEZ KWK E T’
W Il (= FFJUAE - 45 7l it 2 B
13,59l > & L4 £583,738,000% J0
(T FZ LA © 181,918,0004 7T) © M
JEUAF B SR B il P B AR K bt
W A fEE -

WRIEA N R —F—F 475 H M H
BE_ZZNHFE+_H=1+—HIk
R AR B ME 2 LR B
B> AR AR H £137,659,000
W T T A A S A o

16. %5 B 2 F

Ay w)HE i A5 AN R AG B R AR K
AR A IR LL T BRI AR

following data:

2010 2009
e S 2 “EEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T
Earnings A
Profit for the year attributable to AR DL A IR AR M K
owners of the Company for the o IR AR A 2 AR
purposes of basic earnings per share HE 2 5 A A\ AL i
and diluted earnings per share 860,018 1,387,406
Number of shares JBe £ ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary &5 & I 3 A 2 ] 2 5 7 ik
shares for the purpose of basic TIIHE - 1 S
earnings per share 1,371,386,209 1,334,514,045
Effect of dilutive potential W78 e 2 VT v
ordinary shares
— share options — i I RE 3,173,822 2,233,136
Weighted average number of A T AR A
ordinary shares for the purpose 58 i i - 24 B
of diluted earnings per share 1,374,560,031 1,336,747,181
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

17. &Y ¥

The Group
AR
HK$°000
T#7x
AT VALUATION A i
At 1st January, 2009 R_EENF—H—H 6,112,800
Additions o E 42,198
Gain on fair value changes on date of ARG EYEE H AT EHEH
transfer to properties held for sale A 2 AR 882,096
Transfer to properties held for sale HMAGEYE (2,251,840)
Net gain on fair value changes R H AT EEB EE
on date of disposal Wi 75 15 BH 92,557
Disposal ik (1,316,014)
Gain on fair value changes at the end A R (5 8 E AR 2 Wi aR
of the reporting period 1,975,525
Exchange adjustments B 57, 54 B 7,638
At 31st December, 2009 RE-BFAF+ZH=+—H 5,544,960
Additions WHE 4,940
Net loss on fair value changes s A FEEBEEZ
on date of disposal Jis 18 T (7,886)
Disposal i (88,361)
Gain on fair value changes at the end e R (8 5 ) E AR 2 MR
of the reporting period 192,053
Exchange adjustments BEE 52, 5 %% 207,950
At 31st December, 2010 R A=+ —H 5,853,656

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong Kong
and are held under operating leases.

During the year 2009, in view of the market situation, the
Directors of the Company decided to change the use of certain of
the Group’s investment properties, whereby the Group engaged
independent contractors to substantially renovate and upgrade
these properties with a view to sell them to selected target property
buyer groups. Accordingly, these properties were transferred from
the category of investment properties to the category of properties
held for sale on the dates when the renovation and upgrade works
commenced. The fair values of these properties as at the dates of
transfer were determined by independent professional valuer at
HK$2,251,840,000 using direct comparison approach, resulting
in a valuation gain of HK$882,096,000 which was recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

AR E ) BOE Y R A U LASMEA
I % FEEHE R A -

RZEZJEN > BRI &AAF]
HRPREFRAE T AELEBBEGY
ZH® B KEECREB K
0 K S B A% AR AT B
T UETFTHEHEAENEER
A o FI > 25O R R &It
BTG E B R E Y ER
ATREYERN - Z5WEREA
HOH 20T b M S B S (A
FH B B2 Wk 0E £92,251,840,00095
JC o U (E Uk £5882,096,000% T
ZWHENEE _FEFZNE+T A
=+ —HILFEEZ LA RER AR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. &ﬁ%% (3%)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by a professional independent valuer
not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties. As a result of the valuation, a gain on fair value changes
of approximately HK$192,053,000 (2009: HK$1,975,525,000)
was credited to the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31st December, 2010.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

MNoE—REF+HA=Z+—H A%
Mz WE W LN VE ) AR L H
HE 4% R 7 7 B 57 = 25 A RO E H
BT E AR EARR - SEH12 %
FEYENTIZEEEED - HEE
T 5 ) AR U A £9192,053,000
ot (ZFF LA 1 1,975,525,00005
) EFRABE -F—-FE+ A
=t —HIEFEZEAFEERN -

AL AR - DUMOHE &
CR( - RN VEY/E S | T OEE
AHEBEFHE > B IIAE B 3

properties. HY) 3 -
The carrying amount of investment properties held outside Hong UEEFELSIMAERBREYEZ
Kong shown above comprises: EERIERIR A
2010 2009
—E-FF —FFNEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Held under: LU AR
Long lease R 4,704,009 4,447,780
Medium-term lease FhHAFH % 1,149,647 1,097,180
5,853,656 5,544,960
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

18. W3 ~ Wil B ik i

Furniture,
Leasehold Construction fixtures and
land and Plant and work-in- equipment and
buildings equipment progress motor vehicles Total
Al AL REM
ER ) S 1Y T FERTHE SR Hm
HK$°000 HK$ ’009 HK$ ’009 HK$ ’003 HK$ ’0@
T#xT T#x T#T T#T T#T
THE GROUP A4
At cost AR
At 1st January, 2009 RE-EFRE-A—H 530,609 72,268 - 114,102 716,979
Additions WE 847 4,203 5,572 6,399 17,021
Disposals & (210) - - (13,671) (13,881)
Written off s - - - (4,376) (4,376)
Transfer from properties LLYER: 9iky/E
under development \ = = 4,852 = 4,852
Exchange adjustments i 50, 7 4 796 113 = 162 1,071
At 31st December, 2009 B ERENE
+ZA=+—H 532,042 76,584 10,424 102,616 721,666
Additions nNE = 1,265 790 5,309 7,364
Disposals & - - - (9,706) (9,706)
Written off Hi - - (11,410) (870) (12,280)
Exchange adjustments e . 5 % 19,045 2,919 398 3,408 25,770
At 31st December, 2010 R
+ZA=+—H 551,087 80,768 202 100,757 732,814
Accumulated depreciation Rl
At st January, 2009 RZEENE—~H—H 183,034 60,881 - 86,943 330,858
Provided for the year iy 17,247 1,289 - 6,597 25,133
Eliminated on disposals AR 8 (25) - - (11,025) (11,050)
Eliminated on written off Wlfﬁ fhe 5 8 - - - (3,938) (3,938)
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 277 95 - 127 499
At 31st December, 2009 B ERENE
TZH=+—H 200,533 62,265 - 78,704 341,502
Provided for the year R 17,283 1,529 - 6,180 24,992
Eliminated on disposals B B - - - (8,400) (8,400)
Eliminated on written off iﬂﬁlfﬁ fRp 5 £ - - = (807) (807)
Exchange adjustments e . 5 % 7,230 2,375 - 2,628 12,233
At 31st December, 2010 i e
TZH=+—H 225,046 66,169 = 78,305 369,520
Carrying values $ i
At 31st December, 2010 R R
+ZAZ+—H 326,041 14,599 202 22,452 363,294
At 31st December, 2009 B ERENE
+ZA=+—H 331,509 14,319 10,424 23,912 380,164

The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong under

medium-term lease.

AL 2 A S A A RSN >

B REAREAE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

20.

19. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 19. LAl & A
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: AL 2 R AL
2010 2009
R -FF —FFNEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: TEHEUMARFA 2 L
Medium lease B H &) 180 185
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: B LSNUAE A A 2 1
Long lease REATH A 79,029 255,661
79,209 255,846
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Lyt B B
Current assets B A 6,720 6,426
Non-current assets IE B G E 72,489 249,420
79,209 255,846
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. BRI E
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
—E-FF —FFNEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T
At 1st January, at cost —H—H » AR 450,130 274,840
Additions E 2,222,369 175,863
Acquisition of assets through 325 7 WA S — ] f ) 2
acquisition of a subsidiary W i 350,000 -
Interest capitalised EAALF] B 2,199 3,840
Transferred to property, plant AW - FFE Bk
and equipment - (4,852)
Transferred to properties BAREY X
held for sale (628,879) -
Exchange adjustments EE 52, 5 %% 17,146 439
At 31st December, at cost A=+t —H o A 2,412,965 450,130

Properties under development under current assets of
approximately HK$2,412,965,000 (2009: HK$4,994,000) are
expected to be released after twelve months from the end of

reporting period.
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND USE RIGHT

At 31st December, 2010, a deposit of HK$2,157,192,000 (2009:
HK$1,991,218,000) was paid for the land use right of a piece of
land located in the northern portion of Area B-2, and Area B-13-
4, Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the
PRC. That piece of land with a site area of approximately 300,700
square meters and will be developed into low density residential
houses with a planned total gross floor area of approximately
213,230 square meters. The details had been stated in the circular
issued by the Company dated 5th October, 2010.

21. LM fE I BEZ © AT &

MREF—FF+_HA=1+—H B
A7 A HR 1B YA S SRR I A -5 YT R
B-23b [ K B-13-434b [ 6 &5 — 18 £
2 b fd FH RE SZ AT RT 422,157,192,000
ot (ZFZF JUAE 1 1,991,218,0005
JT) ° 7% W& 1 M 2 A 1 R £9300,700
K A B R AR A > AL
A S AR £9213,230°7 7 K o 5E1E
HRAARAFRR —F—-FF+HHH
FI 8 Z WA o

GOODWILL 22. W&
The Group
ALLH
HKS$’000
T
Cost and carrying value JAS B B THT B
At 1st January, 2009, 31st December, 2009 A EEZJE—H—H
and 31st December, 2010 TEENEFTTHAH=ZFT—H K
—EF—-FEF+-H=+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”)
of a wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property
development and trading activities.

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, management of the
Group determined that there was no impairment of the CGU
containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was measured based on
fair value less costs to sell calculation by reference to observable
market price for the underlying properties. It was determined
by management’s past experience, based on the estimated gross
profit from selling of properties to be developed, taking into the
consideration of the prevailing market price.

7R IE 2 — ] A M o W A B
SR BT > %o EE S R R R
B9 SR H o

HE - F-FF+ _HA=Z=+—HI1
AERE S AR [ B R 5 N0 HE B 4
e RV EWHE SRR

B 4 AR BRI AT Rl e B AE 2
ARV AT BET G EEREL
P 3B 8 B AR R T R o
T B AR AR B E o ARIEAE N BH 3
M8 s M TEET B AR > G W
IR 9 i 1
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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BB W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F 4+ H =+ —HILFE

23. BB A 2 hE R

The Group
A AR
2010 2009
R R ZEENF
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T# i T T
Cost of unlisted investments RSN R 2 BT R AR
in associates 30,203 30,203
Share of post-acquisition losses and JRRE A WA i 9% e 48 B oAt A T Wi £
other comprehensive income, B0 B ik i B
net of dividend received (5,483) (7,573)
24,720 22,630
Amounts due from associates /NI 9,490 9,456
34,210 32,086

During the year 2009, the Group disposed of its entire 25%
equity interest in an associate, Shanghai Tomson Guo Jian
Concrete Co., Ltd at a consideration of HK$3,931,000 and
resulted in a gain on disposal of HK$3,185,000.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

Z B o

W EFERILFERN > AL E D AE
3,931,000 7T & A — [ 1 2 8 7
TEGERERETARAAZ 2
#B25% B HE > FE 1M 2E 423,185,000 JC

ASE B R B EORMBEEANT

2010 2009
R R “EEIE
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#7x F#T
Total assets MG E 127,294 121,571
Total liabilities WA (62,255) (65,127)
Net assets B A 65,039 56,444
Group’s share of associates’ net assets 7~ 52 [0 JBE A\ Jt 8 2 ) 2 1 24,720 22,630
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. ﬁs\m % /;\\ ﬁ—‘J Z%ﬁ (%)
2010 2009
%% CTTAF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#7x Ti# T

Revenue YA 31,032 29,616
Profit (loss) for the year R A (5 1E) 6,827 (6,291)
Other comprehensive income T Ath 2 1T A 4R 1,768 214
Group’s share of associates’ other A4 8 4 B AL B A Rl 2

comprehensive income A 2 T A 4

for the year 639 73
Group’s share of associates” profit A B2 [ AE T EAG T A F 2

(loss) for the year % F) (F518) 1,451 (2,017)
Group’s share of associates’ A 45 9] 4 I B A B R 2 i A

profit (loss) and other (e 48) B At 2 17 i 4

comprehensive income for the year 2,090 (1,944)

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from associates
will not be repayable within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and accordingly, the amounts have been classified
as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2010 are
included in Note 41.

W88 2 B GRS AR A - 4 B K e [
TE R o

EH S BE L R AT R R

HROR+ A MR - B 2K
HOIMEIR B & E -

FTEBHESAAN_F—FE+_H
= — H ZFEE R B R4 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F T4+ H =+ —HIL4F

24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

24 R BRI

ENTITIES
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
R -FF —FFNEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly & & &2 I E i & fA
controlled entities 965,954 130,185
Share of post-acquisition profits, R A WA B % v A
net of dividend received B 0B Bl B R 11,266 =
Exchange difference arising MAEABNERELZ
from translation of BEE 54, 22 %3
jointly controlled entities 45,513 29,232
1,022,733 159,417
Amount due from a jointly BEMEIK
controlled entity 513 513
1,023,246 159,930

During the year, Tianjin Tomson Development Co., Limited,
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with an unrelated PRC partner
to establish Tianjin Jinwan Property Co., Limited (“Jinwan
Property”) in the PRC and held 51% interest of registered
capital at the end of the year. However, Jinwan Property is
jointly controlled by the Group and the PRC partner by virtue
of contractual arrangements among shareholders by which the
strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity
of jointly controlled entity require the approval by at least two-
third voting right in the board meeting of Jinwan Property.
Therefore, Jinwan Property is classified as a jointly controlled
entity of the Group.

For the year 2009, Shanghai Nice Year Villa Real Estate Co.,
Ltd, a jointly controlled entity of the Group, ceased its business
operation and dissolved with distribution of HK$27,618,000
to the Group and a gain on dissolution of HK$2,735,000 was
resulted.
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24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of jointly controlled
entities attributable to the Group’s interest therein is set out

24. R BEEZHELR )

ARAEBENSGEME L HEN
PAB BRI T

below:
2010 2009
T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T Ti# T
Current assets i B E 342,207 56,312
Non-current assets IE B G E 704,886 121,845
Current liabilities I N=E (24,360) (18,483)
Non-current liabilities FE T E & = (257)
2010 2009
T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T Ti# T
Income recognised in consolidated &5 A R 2 T BRI 2
income statement 119,764 83,250
Expenses recognised in consolidated T &7 A I R R B L
income statement (107,847) (82,187)

The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured,
interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from a jointly
controlled entity will not be repayable within twelve months of
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amount has
been classified as non-current assets.

Details of jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2010 are
included in Note 41.

AR KGR AR B I

W] 2 12 KA -

EERRS aEA

R

BRI

WK+ 8 A MR - > R

SRR B B E -

BEAER T -TEF T H=+—

H 2 5 1% SO B 741 -
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25.

26.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2010

25.

w4k £ 4 ¥
AV ER P

comprise: i & g A
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
R FEF —FFNEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Listed investments: EHRE

— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — A 7 #5 I 11 2 IR A 78 J¢ 88,208 83,095
Unlisted equity investments I b A 49,022 49,022
Club debenture & i 5 515 515
137,745 132,632

As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale
investments were stated at fair value, except for those unlisted
equity investments and club debenture, the fair value of
which cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of listed equity
investments have been determined by reference to quoted market
prices. No impairment loss was recognised for both years.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in private
entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that their values
cannot be measured reliably.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Investments held for trading represent equity securities listed in
Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS 27. i B % A

() MRS MR Ak > Sl M ik

(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

The general credit terms of the Group given to trade
customers are within 60 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to customers with long business relationship. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables, net of impairment losses, of
HK$32,105,000 (2009: HK$26,638,000) and their aged
analysis as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Hie sk B T A sk

REMGTHESEF 2 K
e B R60H N o A 5 M o &
MTARMEBRAZEFK
RZEEY - AEH & HEM
R AT R B SR AT R
DU AR AR LB <

R B MR K~ A R
W R B TEAT 3K OE N 3 RE i
B 5 B (A8 e (E s 18D
32,105,000% 7T (= FF JL4F ¢

26,638,000% 6) - it A
RZ @ -
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
S®BE CETF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T Ti# T
0 — 3 months 2 =l A 20,502 17,309
4 — 6 months PN iD= 5,948 7,209
7 — 12 months tE+_MA 5,655 2,120
32,105 26,638

In general, the Group makes impairment for trade
receivables over one year because historical experience is
such that receivables that are past due beyond one year are
generally not recoverable. Included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$26,029,000 (2009: HK$21,436,000) which
are past due but not provided for impairment loss. These
receivables relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average
age of these receivables is 180 days (2009: 180 days).

— s > AEEMOH—EL 2R
W 5 R AR AE e E R R R A
28 B BEUR i ] — 4F DL B 2 R R BR K
O R - AL I S IR
TR AE R AL 5 B ] R I (H R A B
MR 2 B B R R

A 3£26,029,000% 7T (—FE JLAF ¢
21,436,000% J0) ° Ut 55 FE WO iR 2k T
B A 42 ] 22 4 98 A A0 Bk R I 2 M8 L
FEA B - MR85 > & g A
5> HiNMs S R ok 8 H A&
SRR L T A Bl (] > B 2R el
G R ORFI I W M o AL 1) M F
UGS & B 2 AT AT IR 5 o IS FE L
WK T BRI 2180 K (—FEE L
4 180K) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 27. i B A a0
(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments (a) M WO B 5 MR Ak ~ D i HE K
(Continued) ﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ (#)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not AR R AR R 2 e 5 R
impaired: A IREE T
The Group
7 5 14
2010 2009
R4 “EEE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
61 - 90 days 61290K 16,230 13,519
91- 180 days 912 180K 5,359 6,216
181-365 days 1812365K 4,440 1,701
Total o 26,029 21,436
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade MW B iRz R 2
receivables: & -
The Group
A 4R 1
2010 2009
R4 “ERHE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T T
Balance at beginning of the year — FH] & i 11,283 6,521
Impairment losses recognised on  #t &I & &) MR AR HERE 2
trade receivables ICRIEN, F 5! 1,453 4,753
Exchange adjustments e 5, 5% & 435 9
Balance at end of the year S 13,171 11,283
Other receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of A IR TR AR (H 552,821,000 T
HK$2,821,000 (2009: HK$2,625,000) are individually (ZEEILAE 1 2,625,000% J0)
impaired as the amount is unlikely to be recovered from the 2 At R HR O K AT BE B A
relevant debtors. RO IR AR X (R
ﬁ o

113 Annual Report 2010 4F EE4E




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments
(Continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts on

27. Ui B R A )

(a) MEWCE S MR Ak ~ 3 i e W
Wk B TEAS K I (40)

JF Al 8 Wi R ek 2 R SRR 8 A 2

other receivables: )
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
T
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T BT
Balance at beginning of the year  4F 4] &5 ik 2,625 2,787
Impairment losses recognised on 5t FAth & It HR SR 58 2

other receivables ICRIEN 7= 100 -
Recovery of impairment loss 12 1] 3 (L s 15 (4) (167)
Exchange adjustments BEE ¢, ) %% 100 5
Balance at end of the year ERAE R 2,821 2,625

During the year, the Group has bad debts recovery
from other receivables through the consolidated income
statement in the amount of HK$184,000 (2009: written
off HK$1,559,000 as a result of compromised settlement
with the relevant debtors). The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

R A O AR R 2 H
by JRE Wiz B R i [ 35 B 4184,000%5
J6 (ZFEER LA« B B N 2 R
Z 1 % BE 851,559,000 J6) - AN 4
9 5l 4 RF A A% S5 A &5 B 2 AT K
5 o

Inventories (b) H#i
Details of inventories are as follows: GEHBWT -
The Group
A 4 1

2010 2009
B EFTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T T
Raw materials JRE 8,774 6,640
Work-in-progress TE B i 2,528 2,440
Finished goods B 8,392 7,303
Packaging materials and accessories il & B B} K& i {4 6,523 6,618
26,217 23,001

Tomson Group Limited S Fi#MEMRAT 114




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W0 WAk WY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(©)

(d)

Trade and other payables and accruals

Included in trade and other payables and accruals are trade
payables of HK$235,521,000 (2009: HK$203,963,000) and
their aged analysis as at the end of the reporting period is as

27. Ui A )

(c)

HE A B 5 M Ak~ 3G fib A%
MRk B T B £

TEREAT B 5 Rk~ HoAth E AT R 2K
N TR N AL EE AT’ ) R K
235,521,000% ¢ (. FF JLF :

follows: 203,963,000% 75) > HoR i IR
Z R HTI R
The Group
AL H
2010 2009
R R ZEENF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T
0 — 3 months EFE A 93,610 7,770
4 — 6 months o= SR A 1,025 445
7 — 12 months t=E=+-MA 93 624
over 1 year —4EDL E 140,793 195,124
235,521 203,963

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables within the credit timeframe.

Cash and bank balances

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits at market deposit interest rates ranging
from 0.01% to 2.25% (2009: 0.01% to 2.25%) per annum
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

(d)

&2 G AR - AEH
£ il 7 BB R B R BOR DA
1 B A RE A B 3K 2 i (5 B A
B o

Bl & B AT &

CHEEALERNFAZHER
AR A B LA E] 3 A R
T3 > K58 Fl 24 F0.01
JEFE 2250 (ZFERIJLF - F
F0.01EE2.25/H) -

e RRITHERN ARE
R EW LN B R

The Group
A
2010 2009
e S 23 ZERNF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#x Fi#Er
USD F T 85,800 195,087
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28. SHARE CAPITAL
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

28. A

Number of shares Amount
JBefr ¥ H &
2010 2009 2010 2009
e S 203 “EENE e S 243 “EENE
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#x T
Ordinary shares of B IR {50.509 70
HK$0.50 each il
Authorised i
~ Balance as at 1st January —R—H— B Z &tk 2,000,000,000  1,500,000,000 1,000,000 750,000
— Increase during the year —SE RGN
(Note 1) (M7t - 500,000,000 - 250,000
— Balance as at 31st December —+—-H=+—H
B 2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid CHTREHR
— Balance as at Ist January ——H—H 2z &t 1,347,537,988 1,323,509,940 673,769 661,755
— Exercise of share options — A7 {5 B8 M - 2,010,000 = 1,005
— Scrip dividend (Noze 2) — AR (i iE2) 47,305,508 22,018,048 23,653 11,009
— Shares repurchased and — O [o] o BT B TR A
cancelled (Note 3) (W it3) (3,264,000) = (1,632) =
— Balance as at 31st December —f+ A =+—H
Z 5 1,391,579,496  1,347,537,988 695,790 673,769

Notes:

1. On 5th June, 2009, the authorised ordinary share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$750,000,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the increase of 500,000,000 ordinary shares

of HK$0.50 each.

2. On 15¢h July, 2009, 22,018,048 new shares of the Company were
allotted and issued at HK$2.572 per share to the shareholders who
elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the final dividend for
the year ended 31st December, 2008. These shares rank pari passu

in all respects with the shares then in issue.

On 29th June, 2010, 47,305,508 new shares of the Company were
allotted and issued at HK$2.91 per share to the shareholders who
elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the special dividend for

the year end 31st December, 2009. These shares rank pari passu in

all respects with the shares then in issue.

it

1. ROFZRFEASAHEH > ARFEE
i 3 1111500,000,000 % 45 % 1 {H0.50
e o0 2 A o ik A
750,000,000 JG # %51,000,000,000
H5IG -

2. ATEZAELATRHE S ARHE
R DL B AR A R s R
EE/NET+_HAH=Z+—HEEZEK
B > 4% 4 2,572k o0 Iic B8 K 8%
1722,018,048 B A /A B ey » 5% %%
JE 7 BEL G IRF 8 B AT 1 I 1y 22 A ) 4
HE2S o

W oFE—FFENA A IE AL
w) [ e 4 DA AR B R > i R =
CEENFEFT A= —HEEZ
R EE > i 2.9 15 I At 9 M
BE1T47,305,508 B A 28\ BT B A0y © 7%
S5 W0y B IRy C 8 AT I By = A T

SR o
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Company
repurchased a total of 3,264,000 of its own shares on the Stock
Exchange at a price of HK$2.97 to HK$3.06 per share, for a total
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$9,910,000.
The repurchased shares were cancelled and an amount equivalent to
the nominal value of these shares of HK$1,632,000 was transferred
from share capital to the capital redemption reserve. The premium
paid on the repurchased shares was charged against the share

28. JBEAR (4

Mt - (%)

3. ®WE_ZF—-ZFFET+_H=1+—H
WEFRE S RN E DB B297# T E
3,067 JC 1Y 18 A% 7 B 22 BT B[] 3%
3,264,000 /8 4% 73 &) By > FEACAE R
w B AT 4 459,910,000 TC o 8 (1]
B R0 B 5 8 - A S R 5% 5 R 2
i i 2.1,632,000% JC 1Y % JE B 7E 1%
EN YN - N A CE - RNaE ol A GDi

premium. By 22 Y A8 R I 3 Ve 1 U B o
Aggregate
Number of ordinary Price per share consideration
Date of purchase shares of HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest paid
5 J0.50 L 2 B B
LY NER] 0 B Jbe By 4 H I 23134 CAF AR
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$°000
o 7 T#x
December 2010 X -FE+TA 3,264,000 3.06 2.97 9,910

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the “Scheme”).
The Scheme was set up for the primary purpose to provide
incentives or rewards to selected persons for their contribution
to the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to eatlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”), the Scheme shall be valid and effective
tll 28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period, no
further options will be offered or granted but in all other respects
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i) any
employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, including
any executive director of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (iii) any adviser, consultant, customer
and supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity who have contributed or will contribute to
the Group; or (iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

117 Annual Report 2010 4 FE 4R #

29. JBEHE A 3 5

RAAMRE —FF ZFRHA 1L
H 8 2 1Y PR 58 PR AR — T B Rt
T 0 S ) 0) o W S O IR
B TR ARG EE L N L
S A A [ A 4 R AT A A HE 2
2T A8 R ([ P78 MR ) 2 | A
H R B E o i AR 0 A Sl A A
KRG PREKERANFREER
([ )5 ]) o M 52 B4k 75t > 1
JHE A A A —F — AR LA
ZANH IR o A RION E AR A A '
FEAT 45 ) 0 S SRR o e S A
3 B4 5 BAE 45 7 T 51 A A0 4 T A K o

MR HEST 8 > EH R/ AT LR
N 52 W RE - () A 4R AT ] B B
o ) BT o] T % G R 2 AT T R B
R B (AR - fE
AL AT AR % B 2\ AT AT BT
B AT T AT 3 s G A 4
T A] B B 2 7 8 AT AT BT 4% & A 2
FEATIEMATE S ( AIEE L R AT
) 5 BX(Gii) AT n] B 3 ol A 4R [ AE
HE R A B BF MR
R e = R B R R (I <
T AR AL 5 W B R A% 2 1 RE T s 5l (Giv)
A 4L AT ] B B 2 | AT AT BT
HEHE 2 AT AT BB > BA 45 B AT o] B B
4y A BT ] Br B A RS R AT AT ] R
FZATTHEA N -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 108,474,911 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme, unless sharecholders’ approval of the Company has been
obtained. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each participant or grantee (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant
of options in excess of the Individual Limit must be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such participant
and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An
option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years
commencing from the date of grant of option. Save as determined
by the Board and provided in the offer of the relevant options,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised under the Scheme. The subscription
price per share of the Company in respect of any option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares on the date of offer.

Under the Scheme, 45,250,000 shares of the Company were
issued upon exercise of share options in 2003, 2005, 2008 and
2009. Therefore, the maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at 31st December, 2010 was
63,224,911, representing approximately 4.54% of the Company’s
existing issued share capital at the end of the reporting period.

29. JBeHE S AL 28 B ()

Wi JE A N B BE SR 2 dt o > MR PR E
JBERE S ) R s 2 R RE I B AT 2
Ay A A B e BR AR A8 HOR ] AR
108,474,911 8% » BRI 2 2% & 7% 5% i
BRERI#IE H 2 B BT B>
10% ° B 4 2 B E SRR ANFE R 27
o M R H R AT A R s
BE R 2 IR (3 EATE
W AR AT ) T A AT (8 B 1T 8 AT K
AT ZARNF A 4R NIRRT
R B 2 AN R C AT IR
BOH Z 1% (TE A LR o il 2 8
H AT A A PR B A
HIZE 48 B SR AE G ROR & b o > WA
ML RHEHSANEYEES L
& Ty

R NGER R iR 2 B ET28 H
T $R L 2 A S TR > I ) AN D S A
135 T0 o AF F 8 157 0 R 2 A >
A G A TR [] o i B HE BT A R R
it 22 I 3 ) O BB RS AT 0 > HERZ IR R
5 [ $% 0 R B R 4 o
RYERE R RESHS - REF R DA RE
K AR 5 A5 B B I ME 4% W R BT R E
Ah o 30 4 T A I RE AT (R 2 A JE R
A WY B A BR o AR PR I R S B T 4R
AT AT B R RE T S > AR W R
MR FRIEEA hE R R 2R E >
R BEABERUT =2
FOREBRESD (REBEER)
T W 22 fir B H S8 2R BT 51 4 2 Uk
T GBI W R H 8 A
i & 2 H 75 B 5 BT & B i 8 35 B 1)
&y 2 V- T s R Gii) i % T
Ji% R 1 B A T (E o

AR 45 B I ME 5T ) > AR 2 F145,250,000
JEREFE R T AR - BB
TRF AR Fe TR E JUAE AT R
HESS BEAT o PRI > A 9 IO O ME 51 )
R oE—FE+ HA=+—H> 7l
HEEEAT (1 I B H B £ 563,224,911
B > BRAS S R A s BRI A B 81T
A #14.54% o
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by Directors and employees during the year.

29. JBeHE S AL 28 B ()

R EE AL A EH KRB A E
JBERr AT B B S A )

Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price 1st January Exercised 31st December
per share 2010 during 2010 2010
BREF—F4 BREZ—F4
ik —H—H “2-%4 A=A
Date of grant B BB iR d ] i A AT A (igid i AT B
HKS$
#
24th July, 2006 ZEERNELAZTNA
— Directors —EF 2.155 4,000,000 = 4,000,000
— Employees —ER 2.155 6,050,000 - 6,050,000
13th November, 2007 “EZLFE+—HA+=H
— Directors —EF 3.644 27,300,000 - 27,300,000
37,350,000 - 37,350,000
Exercisable at the end A AR AT
of the year 37,350,000
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by Directors and employees during prior year.

F

52 20 WS B % W ok

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

29. JBeHE S AL 28 B ()

TR A N A E R B R

H IR IR ) -

Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price Ist January Exercised 31st December
per share 2009 during 2009 2009
RE-FFNF R-FFNE
Ik —~H—H “EFFAE +ZA=t+—H
Date of grant A friifE i AR AT oy i AR AT
HKS
T
24th July, 2006 “EERELAZ A
— Directors —#F 2.155 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
— Employees -ER 2.155 8,060,000 (2,010,000) 6,050,000
13th November, 2007 “ZZLFE+—A+=H
— Directors —#F 3.644 27,300,000 - 27,300,000
39,360,000 (2,010,000) 37,350,000
Exercisable at the end A A RAT
of the year 37,350,000

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended
31st December, 2009, the weighted average share price at the

dates of exercise was HK$2.251.

MeR “FFNFE+_H=1+—H
R AF BEAT O 2 T BOHE T & AT A

2 0 RESV- 35 B A 52,2515 G o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

30. LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 30. 5 0 84T 3%
The Group
AREH
2010 2009
—F-F4 —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T
Bank loans, secured AT » A A 2,053,066 330,569
Less: Amount repayable within one year i : 5’] )\(llh@]ﬁ & ZHIR—4F A
included in current liabilities B 2 1 3R A (129,717) (11,360)
1,923,349 319,209
Carrying amount repayable: B R Z IR THIE -
Within one year — AR 129,717 11,360
More than one year, but not —AE DL B AEAS A W A
exceeding two years 294,811 68,159
More than two years but not A DA B ARAS 8 4t 4R
more than five years 1,628,538 251,050
2,053,066 330,569

The bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as disclosed
in Note 30.

Bank loans were floating-rate borrowings of HK$2,053,066,000

(2009: HK$330,569,000) which carried interest rates ranging
from 5.31% to 5.96% (2009: 5.31% to 5.76%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. YE E B0
Accelerated  Revaluation Exchange
tax of difference Tax
depreciation  properties LAT  recognition losses Others Total
ik el T EREMR
BEOE  WEEME WEs Bd BEH Hf Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt FitL Fitrx Tt Fitrn Fitx Fit
The Group AEH
Balance as at RZZENE
Ist January, 2009 —~B—H 248 (40423)  (925,696) S eIy 14967 8208 (990,621)
(Charge) credit to consolidated MWAEEGAFEE
income statement for the year (1) # I (4,451)  (1,184,454) 178,141 - (14,992) (71)  (1,025,827)
Exchange adjustments i S % (71) (32) = (77) 25 1 (154)
Balance as at =R
31t December, 2009 TZAZT—HZER  @494) (110180 178141 (47,754) = 8,138 (2,016,602)
(Charge) credit to consolidated WAEELAFIEE
income statement for the year  (F1115() # [ (5,793) 108,946 (22,264) = 466 (1,247) 80,108
Exchange adjustments I 53R % (1,942) (314) = (1,814) S 102 (3,968)
Balance as at e S 2
31t December, 2010 FIAZH-HZER (52,680 (2,001,550) 155877 (49,568) 466 6,993 (1,940,462)

For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

MR IR MBIRIL RS - 5 Tk
EHIHEE R AMC TR - LT R
BT A5 3R O AR AR B T A5 BR AT

2010 2009

“®-RE CTIAE

HKS$’°000 HK$000

T#x Tt

Deferred tax assets i SIE ol JA 3,054 2,090
Deferred tax liabilities R A B IH A R (1,943,516) (2,018,692)
(1,940,462) (2,016,602)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

31.

32.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$387.4 million (2009: HK$445.2 million) available
for offset against future profits. In 2010, a deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$1,863,000 (2009: Nil) of such
losses.

Under the New Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
Ist January, 2008 onwards. At the end of the reporting period,
the aggregate amount of distributable earnings of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries in respect of which the Group has not provided
for dividend withholding tax amounted to approximately
HK$2,698.10 million (2009: HK$1,547.54 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2000, Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (the “Hotel
Company”), a jointly controlled entity in which the Group has
a 50% interest, entered into a management agreement for 20
years (the “Management Period”) with Inter-Continental Hotels
Corporation (the “Management Company”). The Management
Company agreed to pay not exceeding US$6 million to the
Hotel Company for hotel renovation and system upgrading
(the “Renovation Fund”). During the Management Period,
the Management Company will receive a certain amount of
management fee based on income and profit of the Hotel
Company.

The Group is a guarantor to indemnify the Management
Company up to 50% of the Renovation Fund paid, but not
exceeding US$3 million if the management agreement is
terminated by the Hotel Company within the Management
Period. At the end of the reporting period, the Renovation
Fund paid by the Management Company amounted to US$6
million (2009: US$6 million). As the Management Company is
a world-class hotel management group and the operating results
of the Hotel Company has improved, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Hotel Company would be unlikely to terminate
the management agreement within the Management Period.
Accordingly, it would be unlikely for the Group to suffer any
material financial loss as a result of giving the indemnity.
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31. EHE B )

A RS R o AR 4 AT AR R R AR
T A 2 A By F B 26 G 18 £5387,400,000
W (ZF X JLAF ¢ 445,200,000%
J6) o R E T CHEFER
91,863,000 0 (T FE LA M)
R BIEMERAEE -

R 8 Bl ik BB A Wi &
T \AE— A — H &R BT &5 IR 0 B
BB TEIORL - R R - A4
e R G = /N I I3 e S s
#12,698,100,000% JC (- FF JLAE ¢
1,547,540,000% JC) - A 48 4] 4 ok 1E
R B 0 AR A o

32. B AR B0

W EREERAE > AL EFFA50%H 4
ZEHEBRELLBHRITEGEREEAR
FR 2 &) (NI 5 2 & J) B P g 0 &
MAF ((EHAR]D FTL—HAEM
204F ([ M) 2 M- &
LN G = R S a4
]399 15 28 @] 32 AT AR £ 726,000,000 3% 76
(TR &R - REMMH > A
) S 4% T I A R 2 U A B s I i B
HTERER -

ENCAT D RSN N K8
T e S 7 B3 M) A Pl DR S W&k
Il 7 4 [ 75 5 £ BN | A B R
2 5 2£50% o {H A 413,000,000
EI0 - EEMAR > BHAFR A2
B0 2 B £46,000,000% 8 (XA,
4 16,000,000 J6) © R E LA A
{1 B PR AR E PR AR I > i HL
JENTF 2 MEEEOENSL > EFR
0 T 28 A A K AT RE i 4 2 H Y
KR E P o Wt > AREEEOR K]
E Wl 1 5 1 £ 3% 1T 5% A2 AT il B K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the
material capital and other commitments:

B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

33. R ¥

Group had the following

IR > AR 2 EEEAR R
fbRSFEM T

2010 2009
N
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Capital commitments B AR
Commitments in relation to A BR B R P 3 ST 2RI
expenditure on properties
under development:
Contracted but not provided for S FAEER 0 35,107 431,682
Other commitments JC il 75 ¥
Operating lease arrangements g s 2 HE
i)  The Group as lessee i) A SR 1 A 2y AR RLA
At the end of the reporting TR AR > AR AN i
period, the Group had KAETHE » AN
outstanding commitments AR T HHE A
under non-cancellable B 2 AR -
operating leases which fall due:
— within one year ——FN 10,739 10,040
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — RN
(B15E R M) 21,500 8,022
— over five years — 4D E 3,849 4,171
36,088 22,233

Operating lease payments represent rentals and annual fees

for use of land payable by the Group for certain of its office

properties and land. The significant operating leases for

rental of properties are negotiated for an average term of

three years. The operating leases for annual fees for use of

land are based on lease terms of the land which are over five

years.

R BRI Y R A B
aTWAEYEL LW fT 2
FHl 4 I AP BE b b REFE 4 -
MY 2 EE AR T
B =4 o A ST T i
MRz EEHEABR T
R T A o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

33.

34.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

ii)  The Group as lessor

The properties held have committed tenants from the
majority of two years up to the maximum of ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments which fall due:

33. W ()

i) ARKLBAESHAA

Jir 45 1 36 2 R AN 22 K el AL
REBME > mEHTHF -

TS R AR R A R T BEOR
LN FT&T & # > R
SR ST 2 BB & T

2010 2009

g EEAE

HK$°000 HK$000

T#x T T

— within one year ——%R 83,456 61,839
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — — 5% 4 258 TL4F (B 45 5 B W 4F) 67,050 34,283
— over five years — ALk 15,753 7,072
166,259 103,194

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at the specified rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions paid and
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain
percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

125 Annual Report 2010 4 4F 4

34. W ARH A5t E

AEMEMPR ZFTTE+ AR R
il 8 A 4 w3 1) 2 B — THUOR
ate (BREE) 8- BHEE
it B 2 B BLA AR 2 ) B A
o W LRV A — B 5N
B o ARAR R A B AT ISR o T MR
B ¥ BT 1% 5 3 RT B L AR AR
P o

T A AR R 0 BR 2 R R & AT
FE AL 2 PR 98 A4 T w R R ET
2 RO RN TR MK -

B B S A5 AR b R R
B 52 BB 3t R KRR A R 2
AR o R EIBA - R E KR B 3
A RAE & 2 T A 2 AR fit
B o ANAE F B R AR R EE B 2 A
FAE A AE AT IR -



35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W0 WAk MY
VRS X

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #Z%E —%

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@)

(b)

(©)

In 2005, the Company had entered into an agreement
covering the period from 1st September, 2005 upto 31st
August, 2008, with Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company agreed to provide administrative
services and office premises to RHL and its subsidiaries, in
return, RHL is required to share an attributable portion
of the administrative cost of the Company, for a monthly
fee of HK$150,000. The agreement was superseded by
a new agreement dated 30th June, 2008 with revised
administrative cost of HK$230,000 per month for the
period from 30th June, 2008 to 31st July, 2011. During the
year ended 31st December, 2010, the administrative cost of
the Company shared by RHL amounted to HK$2,760,000
(2009: HK$2,760,000). As at 31st December, 2010 and
31st December, 2009, no outstanding balance was owed by
RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction but is exempted from disclosure and approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

As at 31st December, 2010, included in the consolidated
financial statements under trade and other payables and
accruals, was an amount of HK$1,500,000 due to a non-
controlling sharcholder of a subsidiary of the Company.
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

On 3rd October, 2001, Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited
(“Tomson Golf”) and Shanghai Tomson Real Estate
Investment & Development Co., Ltd. (“Tomson Real
Estate”), wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Shanghai Pudong Land
Development (Holding) Corp. (“SPLD”), a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate
Development Co., Limited (“Tomson Pudong Real Estate”)
which is an indirect 70% owned subsidiary of the Company.
Pursuant to the agreement, Tomson Golf and Tomson Real
Estate agreed to acquire from SPLD at a total consideration
of US$130 million for land use right of a site area of
approximately 1,480,000 square meters. The agreement was
approved by the shareholders in an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 27th November, 2001.

35. BH A L+ B B W5 3R 5
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

35. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

The parties to the agreement and Tomson Pudong Real
Estate further entered into a conditional supplemental
agreement on 17th April, 2009 (“First Supplemental
Agreement”) to revise the total consideration and the site
area to RMB2,200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,496.12 million) and approximately 1,020,000 square
meters respectively. The First Supplemental Agreement was
approved by the shareholders in an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company held on 5th June, 2009.

However, a condition precedent, being the confirmation
and approval of filings of relevant documents to the relevant
government department(s) in the PRC, could not be fulfilled
because of the fact that the transfer of interests in the subject
plot of land did not comply with the legal requirements
for contribution of registered capital/investment amount,
and the PRC government’s continued policy to restrict
transfer of land for golf course purpose. After negotiation,
Tomson Golf, Tomson Real Estate and SPLD entered
into a conditional second supplemental agreement on
10th September, 2010 to revise the total consideration
and the site area to RMB1,829.25 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,157.19 million) and approximately
300,700 square meters respectively. An announcement dated
10th September, 2010 in respect of the second supplemental
agreement was made by the Company accordingly. Details
of the transaction were disclosed in a circular to shareholders
dated 5th October, 2010. The second supplemental
agreement was approved by shareholders in an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 29th October,

2010.

As at 31st December, 2010, all of the consideration of
RMB1,829.25 million was paid. Proper arrangement for
delivery of land in phases in accordance with the second
supplemental agreement have been made between the Group

and the vendor at the date of issue of this report.

SPLD was a connected person to the Company and the
transaction also constituted a connected transaction for the

Company under the Listing Rules.
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35. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

35. AN L BB TR Y )

(d) FREHANEZME

The remuneration of Directors during the year was as FERZERHFMMT
follows:

2010 2009
g EEAE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
Short-term benefits 5 HA 4 16,427 13,434
Post-employment benefits EXIN Rl 41 36
16,468 13,470

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee or the Board (or under the
authorisation of the shareholders of the Company as the
case may be) by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance.

The balances due from associates and a jointly controlled
entity at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes
23 and 24, respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
related parties.

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2010, certain investment properties with
carrying value of HK$5,379,481,000 (2009: HK$643,190,000),
leasehold land and buildings with carrying value of
HK$63,766,000 (2009: HK$63,646,000), properties held for sale
with carrying value of HK$449,129,000 (2009: HK$29,701,000)
and a bank deposit of HK$47,583,000 with deposit interest rate
1.91% per annum (2009: Nil) were pledged to banks to secure
bank loans of HK$2,053,066,000 (2009: HK$330,569,000).

EHIFM I H M E BTG REERR (
BAR A 2N R BER A HE > AL UL T
FE) 7% W S H K F -l 2
Wik B e AR B R E o

A RSt ERBREM R
JRE AT 8 i 0 B SRS B 23 S 24 -

bl 22 By BAR 4R A 4R T B A% B A
+ B 5 [ B 2 o AT -

36. ¥ At Z 1

W_E—-FFEF_H=1+—H I
T {8 £45,379,481,000 76 (| ~FZ |,
4 1 643,190,000 C) Z & THEY
2 KR E £563,766,000% 96 (&
F LA ¢ 63,646,000 C) Z & L
Hh F 48 5 DA M M T £5449,129,000
ot (EEJULAE : 29,701,000 J0)
2 Fp B 2L 2 47,583,000% 7T & R
T2 3 (I 3R R 2 4F B91E (=
FEIE ) CIEM TR ME
%42,053,066,000% J6 (T F JLAF ¢
330,569,0004 J0) Z SRITERZ ISR -
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. ANA G 2 M B & P
COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31st December, B -EEFLH=ZF—H AN
2010 is as follows: HZMBEERNT
2010 2009
e S 23 ZEERILF
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
B 5E T 0 T or
Total assets O E 4,412,987 4,223,235
Total liabilities A (1,128,026) (846,009)
Total assets and liabilities A K B A 3,284,961 3,377,226
Equity £
Share capital Jie A 28 695,790 673,769
Share premium and reserves B A6 Vi A % ftt 38 2,589,171 2,703,457
3,284,961 3,377,226
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38. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

38. A8 2 vl Jbe Ay kAT % fik i

RESERVES
Capital Share
Share redemption option Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
A
Bepriat  BEGEE OWBHEGERE  AUARS  REEN it
HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$’000
T#7x T#7 T#7x T#7x T#7x T#7x
THE COMPANY A
Balance at 1st January, 2009 RZFFNE
—A— R4 1,960,781 14,058 35,515 327,645 258,664 2,596,663
Profit for the year A B i - - = = 130,639 130,639
Exercise of share options 17 {5 P 3,327 - - - - 3,327
Transfer upon exercise TV 0 i P 1 A
of share options 1,124 = (1,124) = = =
Issue of shares under HRAR DUBAL B w181
scrip dividend scheme BTy 45,621 = = = = 45,621
Dividend paid for 2008 TR —FFNFRE - - - - (72,793) (72,793)

Balance at Ist January, 2010  R-ZF—F4F
—A— R4tk 2,010,853 14,058

34,391 327,645 316,510 2,703,457

- = (38,067) (38,067)
- = (1,632) (8,307)

- - - 114,006
- - (158265  (181,918)

Loss for the year SR = =
Repurchase of shares Ju ] PR A7 (8,307) 1,632
Issue of shares under scrip MR DUBAS 181
dividend scheme BEATR A 114,006 =
Dividend paid for 2009 A —FFNERE (23,653) -
Balance at 31st December, R_F—BIE
2010 +ZN=+—H
Z &tk 2,092,899 15,690

34,391 327,645 118,546 2,589,171

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group has
issued 47,305,508 new shares (2009: 22,018,048 new shares)
as scrip dividend of HK$137,659,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 (HK$56,630,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2008) as set out in Notes 15 and 28.

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, certain investment
properties of the Group with fair values of HK$2,251,840,000 at
dates of transfer were transferred to properties held for sale during
the year set out in Note 17.

39. FEFEBLERY

REEF-FF+_H=1+—H
1B AR B > A 4E E 2 %% 1747,305,508 /%
B (FF LA 1 22,018,048 BHT )
RE®REFFNF+HA =+ —
H 1k 4F B 2 i E137,659,000% JC (#
FEEENEFT+ A=+ —HIL4E
B 456,630,000 J6) (G 74 Bt 5E15 )%
28) o

REEFZNFET+_H=1+—H
IR > AREEMSE TREDEBA
HEEDE RBEAEHLATHEA
2,251,840,000% 7C (A B E17) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 40.
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29th October, 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to subscribe for 70% issued share capital of MHK Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, for a cash
consideration of HK$210,000,000. MHK Limited is principally
engaged in property development and the sole asset held is a piece
of land in Macau.

975 188 W ik — 1A B 2 )

s ¥

W FE—-FF+H T ILH K
EEEET — ek B & RAE
210,000,000 7T 52 #iMHK Limited
(O 5% 5 b 2o BF 5 ok i B2 2 A AD)

70%E ¥ 17 A - MHK Limited 3 %
TR EFRER > MFAZHE—&
E A TR TR Y 2 — g o

HK$°000

T#7x

Property under development BRI 350,000
Cash and bank balances Bl MERAT 45 8% 32
Deposit and prepayments e A K 591
Other payables HC A A HR K (50,623)
Net assets & E 300,000
Non-controlling interest P2 IR SR A (90,000)
Net assets acquired W i R R 210,000
Purchase consideration settled in cash DABR 4 45 00 2 B B AR A (210,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired W i 3L < B SR AT & B 32
Net cash outflow on acquisition W B B < U o TR (209,968)
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2010

41. TEWBAA - BEAG

Bfaat

R -FEL+ZHA=+—H

ZEERMB A

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR T AAEFHZUET
3L A HEmA JBeAR /i o A
B I 2 vl 4 A 38281 ol i A BB BER bR FEEH
Directly Indirectly
i A%
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
KRR LR 10037 REER
Cosmos Success Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
Development Limited
0 A PR il 10,000% 7t REB MR
Dafeng Property PRC US$500,000 - 100 Property management
Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
KUEWEE R (L) i 500,000 1T MEER
HWRAF (HiE)
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
fE2EaE R A R T 27T Ev8-¢eidid
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
RHARAR il 10,000% 7t RET M
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
EHEARAR &k 27T BEER
Humphreys Estate Hong Kong HK$200 s 100 Securities trading
(Strawberry Houses) Limited i 200 7T BREE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Property holding
BIFARAR wik 20T MERH
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Inactive
#REARAT LS 170 METH
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Providing property
services to the Group
RIRFA PR B 267C RS B
S e
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BB W0 WAk M

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 41. FERBAY - BB AN
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES BEBAE #)
(Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2010 (Continued) N 22—+ _H=+—H
ZEEWB A 4)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR Tl ARAFHZUET
R Y WA 1312 v4 WAk it A
B I 2% ) 4 AR 3328 ol i A FERBERR bR FEEE
Directly Indirectly
ik %
% %
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
[ 3 A PR ) wik 27T Ev8-¢idid
Leway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Inactive
NEHRAH i 27T TEET
Maxi Charm Holdings Led. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
by areids 1£E7 BEER
MHK Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 = 70 Property development
KRR LS 30,0003 G MERR
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
H i R 7 wik 27T Ev8-¢idid
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$40,200,000 = 100 Investment holding
KR LS 40,200,000 G REB MR
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Rk ARA TR &k 27T BEER
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu PRC US$18,500,000 = 95 Property development
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (2))
HEGERHELE i 18,500,000 7 YR
BEA AT (B 72)
Shanghai Tomson Outer PRC US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Gaogiao Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (1)
T BN R AR B B Gl 15,000,000 7t MERR
BRAT (i)
Shanghai Tomson Plastic PRC 1US$9,580,000 = 58 Manufacturing of
Industry Co., Led. (Note (2) PVC pipes
HEHEEREE Gl 9,580,000 I WiEpE
FBRAE (i)

133 Annual Report 2010 4F EE4E



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W05 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES BEBAE @)

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2010 (Continued) RN —FE+_H=+—8H
ZEEMB A 4)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRC#T AB A Z CBAT
ik b 3 WA,/ JBe AR/ ¥ A
W 2 7 4 BRI ik W ¥ A T 2 b % ER >3/
Directly Indirectly
Hik A%
% %
Shanghai Tomson Pudong PRC US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (2))
i O R b ] 46,000,000 1T ES 13
MEARAR (i 02)
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate PRC US$100,000,000 - 100 Property development
Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
i B P B 100,000,0003 7& B
HIRAH (W)
Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate PRC RMB2,442,500,000 - 75 Property development
Development Co., Limited
(Note (2))
R E s i N H2,442,500,0007C B9
HIRAF (H72)
Tianjin Tomson Development PRC RMB1,500,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited (Note (1))
KA B s A i AR H1,500,000,0007C igceidl
(Wit (1)
Toben Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment
WA A i 2ETT AR
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BB (R B AR i 28T AL
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands Uss$1 100 - Investment holding
b3 are il 1B BB
Tomson Empire View British Virgin Islands US$65,010,000 = 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited
o b PR R ) FRELHE 65,010,000% 7T R
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2010 (Continued)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCHNT AR Z B BT
i3 ) A WA,/ WA/ ¥ A
WEJes 2 7 44 3428 ] ik I ¥ A Yy BT ER =371
Directly Indirectly
Hik 1] 2
% %
Tomson Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited
¥ b B AL R i 10,000 7 TR
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) PRC US$40,000,000 = 100 Golf course and club
Limited (Note (1)) operation, and
property development
W R (L) A 40,000,003 7 =R B
HIRAF (1) g UR
EZ 9
Tomson Group Garland PRC US$16,000,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai) Housing
& Estate Ltd. (Note (1))
BEEMFEL (L) FHE P 16,000,000% 7T UES 4
KA R (i)

Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20 = 100 Providing nominee
services to the Group
and investment
holding

GEER (BN ARLA FiE 203 7T AAEER Y
BB K

Tomson Group (Nominees) Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee

No. 2 Limited services to the Group

HEEEE (LEA) i 20 7T RS S LT

HIRAF A MRFE
Tomson Haijing Garden PRC US$58,200,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai Pudong New
Area) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
6 ST [ (i B 58,200,0003 7T B

W) H IR A (i)
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B A W0 WAk MY

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ - H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

41, EEW)E A H - BB AW
&ﬁ'%ﬁ?%(ﬁ) .

(Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2010 (Continued) N2 —FE+_H=+—8H
ZEEME A at)
Proportion of
Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR UHf ARFAFHZOHEST
i3 AA W BA WA/ A
W 24 ) 4 Y3 3% ] ik A Wb 2 b K ER-E3 1
Directly Indirectly
H# WA 4%
% %
Tomson International Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Investment holding and
Entertainment Co. Ltd. investment in concert
business
35 o 0 R 4 A R 1 i 27T BRI
BRI
Tomson International Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Film distribution
Entertainment Distribution
Limited
97 b I PR R B 1T i 1T BT
HERRH
Tomson International PRC US$16,800,000 = 100 Property development
Trade Building
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Note (1))
Vo B SR (L) G 16,800,000% It B
HIRAF (W)
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK§$3 100 - Investment holding
R EARA A i 3T BOE B
TPR Secretarial Services Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial
Limited services and investment
holding
i 10,0004 7t B AR R B
BE R
Walsland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
HZRAHRA A ik 10,0004 7t R
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Investment holding
FRICH R 22 i 2T BOE B

Tomson Group Limited ¥EEMAMRAR 1 36




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W0 WAk M

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F —F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification of
establishment is as follows:

(1) wholly foreign owned enterprise

(2)  sino-foreign equity joint venture

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2010

41, EEHE A - B
L

&l
&l

=N
N

#1)

2 WY& 2> AR AF A B AR AT AT B
] AL A ] i oA A 2 2 LB A6 5

BiEEE - v A SE Y B A ] o G AR

(1)  SPrmE R
2 HHOEERE

R_-F-FE+ZA=+—H
ZLEREE A

Paid up Proportion of
issued issued share capital/
Form of Place of ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B T AAARHZ
ik b 3 ¥ahA,/ CEATRA ik
B8 A 4 FHHEBER  RERRN [i35:& AT WA B R LEEH
Directly Indirectly
A Il %
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$45,000 - 26.7 Investment holding
ERARAA ALY A ik 45,0009 7T TR
Yankie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 - 50 Investment holding
BEEA R ok fit S ik 2T BELER
LT & Partners Inc. Incorporated British Virgin US$9,000,000 - 33 Investment holding
Islands
ALY A RRELHE  9,000,000% 7T BRI
China Boom Incorporated British Virgin US$1,280,000 = 44 Investment holding
Enterprises Limited Islands
BEMEHRAH ALY KRELREE  1,280,000%7C BRI
Tomson Entertainment ~ Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited television and
entertainment
businesses
ViR R AR R hE 25,000,000 £ ¥ HETY - BHR
ok 4 3675

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries and associates would be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the particulars
of those subsidiaries and associates which significantly affect the
results or assets of the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—F4E+ " H =+ —HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 41. 1B ® %E A~ BB AN

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES BB

(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities as at 31st December, 2010 N2 -+ _H=+—H

ZHBMRE
Percentage
of effective

Form of Place of interest in

Name of jointly business incorporation Paid up registered capital

controlled entity structure and operation  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

i3 ) AA MRz A B4 Z ki

RREXAM RBHEMEA REBRY (i3 ) YO TP A LR ER E31

Directly Indirectly
% 1] 4
% %

Shanghai Jinjiang Sino-foreign PRC US$24,340,000 = 50 Hotel owning
Tomson Hotel Co., equity joint and operation
Led. venture

EWBILGERNE PR ERE TR 24,340,000% 7T BEA BT
HIRRAHE

Tianjin Jinwan Property  Sino-foreign PRC RMB1,406,385,800 - 51 Property development
Co., Limited equity joint

venture

KA E THREEE R AR #1,406,385,8007C UES 4

HIRRAH
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1ransactions

In the ordinary course of business, current accounts have been TEH W EB MM T > AEH KN B IR
maintained between companies in the Group. At the end of the AR o ik BIR > 4 48 B = 6%
reporting period, the particulars and the aggregate balances of B (AT BEMCR B A A R 2 I 2 &
the current accounts due (to) by the following non-wholly owned J& 2 R Z AL AR ARIE L WE 5 S 4 R AR T
subsidiaries of the Company to the remaining members of the Group

were as follows:

Percentage

shareholdings

attributable
Name of subsidiary to the Group 2010 2009
FiY s 2 7 44 4 AEBBEABRE T e R ZELNE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T

Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 95% = (210)
i BT A B R A BR A

Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. 58% - 13
EELEBBEEARAF

Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 70% (798,344) (525)
7 3 BT RS B R A BR A

Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate Development Co., Limited 75% 41 -
KEE s E g A RA A

MHK Limited 70% 33,300 -
These current accounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed AR T T B N S [
repayment terms except the amount of HK$687,252,000 (2009: Nil) SR MEREAT IS ER R R E R R A
due to Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd FRA 7] 3K IE687,252,00048 76 ( B E JLAE -
which is interest bearing at 7% per annum. M) R AN » 3 TE AR ) R JE S B, o
Details of the connected transactions are set out in Note 35 to these [E B AT 7 E I A A AR S RS R R M R
consolidated financial statements. 35 o
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As at 31st December, 2010 P - EF—F4FE+_H=+—H
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ABEBL 2 WE
Investment Properties wEPYE
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
BEA A A% M
G Yo Bt B 9% A il B (°FJ5 K ) ik Z g
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 15,655 for offices Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and the Lujiazui and podium;
whole of level 3 to 5 of the Finance and 7,594 for car parks
commercial podium and 141 Trade Zone
car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GEINSE TR PER W S 3 HT RS LES 100%
P2 W8 P [ R B 7109 Ho & 15,655 Ji K
i 5 A B2 3 o 5 1 22 T 2-2-15E B AHAL7,594°F I K
G2 Fa L YT RES A
YU RIER: KA
The whole of level 1 to 3 Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,199 for offices Commercial 100%
of the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free and podium;
4/F., 8/F. to 12/F., 14/F., Trade Zone 4,299 for car parks
17/F. to 25/F. and part of
7/F. and 12A/F. of the
office tower and 105 car
parking spaces of Tomson
International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
G YNSRI W3 SRR PR A HTYHREEG [CES 100%
O A8 PR B I 2 R 1 C3-0014 Bt 36,199°F i K 5
i i R B KRR T 2 1 3 2 T W 4,299F I K

Bl K M4M - s 108~ 1488
WL EVAL =N VAN v
Je 105 A B i

Tomson Group Limited BEEMARAT 1 40




TEHEYER

edule of Principal Properties

As at 31st December, 2010 A —F—F4HE+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued)

AREMEAH W% =)

Investment Properties (Continued) BEWE )
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
BEA AM A
G o B % AL Wi Bt (CFJi k) ik ZHER
Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, Medium term 11,903 for Commercial 95%
the commercial podium and 244 Street, offices and
136 car parking spaces of Zhangjiabangjiedao, podium;
Tomson Business Centre, Lujiazui Finance 5,054 for
158, 188, 228 Zhangyang and Trade Zone car parks
Road, Lujiazui Finance and
Trade Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e N B SE AT b O SRR P % W6 4 b 5 [ o BYHRES [ES 95%
PE 5 s 4l 5 [ RAEHE 11,903°FJ7 K
B 158 188~ 2284 144N A 75,054F 7 K
Vi b TS 0 K R R 3
H1FEAE 28 R 13608 (L
Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1 Long term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
thdE N RS L i R R 1 [ B 1745 &M 35,423 e 100%
BERESME SR 155 Bt
fE 1 B 285
B E— B
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 109,359 Industrial 100%
Park, No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi 19 Jiefang,
Road, 27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone, Zone
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
thE N R SEAN B b i R R Bh A R L I i 109,359 T¥ 100%
Ab R (R B I G L 198 55 1/1 F R1/4F

381438355 » #H §f27 K295 -

BRI 358t
VB AN G L2 R IR
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As at 31st December, 2010 A —-F—ZF4+_-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AR ZWE @)
Golf Course BRI
Approximate
Gross
Floor Area Group’s
Description Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HOE40 480 B i A
b A W CPIX) ik P4 )
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium Club Houses, An 18-hole 100%
No.1 Long Dong Avenue, driving range golf course
Pudong New Area, and maintenance
Shanghai, room of 12,652
People’s Republic of China with site area
of 952,154
i NRILAE it G W RIRSCE 5 R 181 = K 2k 355 100%
R R SRR 1 5 5 512,652 ik
IR A=Y PR §1 b A8 T
£5952,154F i K

Tomson Group Limited %5 i 4 Ml 47 L 24 W] 142




As at 31st December, 2010 A= —F4&£+ _-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ABEEFEHZWE )
Properties under development B E
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Lot Site Area Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
Description Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest Completion Completion
H 0 48 BA A 3| fhit 2z
] B (i k) W CEEX) Mg b4 5 B 6 H
A piece of land at the Lot 7-2, 23,924 207,700 Residential 75% The land is pending ~ Mid 2015
junction of Jiefang North Heping and for development
Road and Chifeng Road, District, commercial
Heping District, Tianjin
Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China REfTE 23924 207,700 FERER  75% fepEE i e S oL
P AR LA 7-29E 0 B
pREVIRN ieldi 3
IR IBAE S
Z—IRt
A piece of land at No. 22356 2,569 23,600 Luxury 70% The land is at the Mid 2013
Travessa do Colégio No.7 folio 100, residential stage of site
¢ Calcada do Bom Parto Book B16K formation
No.2, Macau
R P B A B 755 R HALE L 2,569 23,600 FEMLET  70% GACER A “EF-ZEd
KRR — 22356 > Ho TR B
F100H >
BF 16K
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As at 31st December, 2010 A —-F—ZF4+_-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AR ZWE @)
Properties held for sale thEYE
Approximate
Gross
Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
1E 24 0 i AEH
it o B % AL HECER) B ZHER
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/F., Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
11/F., 17/F. of Tomson Lujiazui
Commercial Building Finance and
710 Dongfang Road Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
wp e N B SE A E b ROR P % W 4 il i 3,039 [ES 100%
e K W 4 RS 7 R R B 71058 B 5
BESMAECE7H - 108 2215 B
11# B 17# 2 W
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., Lot C3-001 Medium 4,035 Commercial 100%
and 16/F. of Waigaogiao term
Tomson International Free Trade
Trade Building Zone
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
Gk YN Wk SR R B I G 4,035 [CES 100%
B e A O B I 1 5 C3-001 %55 B

o b P ) K s
Off ~ 158 Juiek 2z i
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TEHEYER

edule of Principal Properties

As at 31st December, 2010 A —F—F4HE+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ABEEFEHZWE )
Properties held for sale (Continued) HFEWE 4
Approximate
Gross
Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
1BE 40 M i A%
it o Bt 5% A HECER) B ZHE
Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No.1 Long-term 53,745 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GE YN MR Hh [ B 17 1 S M B 3. 53,745 e 100%
e XS RE 5 R
L 115 B 285F
B b — AR B CREZ 03 LA KD
Phases VI & VIII & IX Tomson Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,741 Residential 100%
Golf Villas, 1 Long Dong Tong Le Cun,
Avenue, Pudong New Area, Hua Mu Xiang
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GE YN MRS fEARSR EH23/10 3 1,741 e 100%
HE SR KB 1555 B0 v K ) 22
SN R AR L
Part of Tomson Riviera Garden, Lot 3, 15 Jiefang, Long-term 14,488 Residential 70%
Lane 2255, Luoshan Road, Huamu Zhen,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
o N R SE A b R T SRR [ fE SR &# 14,488 £ 70%
B 1l gh2255 5 B E T 15E 873
2
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 470 for Residential 100%
167 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun residential;
Tomson Golf Garden, 1 Long Jingiaozhen, 5,205 for
Dong Avenue, (2 of North Pudong New Area car parks
District), Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
BE YNGE N RE W SR [ =2 HE470FH K HE 100%
HEROKH 198 (Jb2lR) SR HEREMN47/1E SRR A
6 B iR 7 K AE FEIB R FE 2 0473 5,205°F 77 K

LA K 1671 A 5 i
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As at 31st December, 2010 A —-F—ZF4+_-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY JOINTLY LSBAERE2IME
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Properties held for investment FERE2WE
Approximate
Term Gross
Lot of Floor Area Group’s
Description Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
A9 AR i ARH
ik Ho Bt 4 5% AL WA CEk) R ZHid
The InterContinental Lot 12 Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
Shanghai Pudong hotel Zhangyang
777 Zhangyang Road, Lujiazui Road
Finance and Trade Zone, Commercial
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
G YN W2 & o i i 1 S [ G 52,622 i 50%
BE KW 4 B 2 [ o A B 7779 125 B
VR VL35 B K I
Properties held for development FESRZ2YE
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Lot Site Area Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
Description Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest Completion ~ Completion
RSER T
WRAWR AR flivtZ
i3 Yo B B % CF3K) (F5K) ik b4 1 56 1 Bt 56 1 1
A piece of land at Lot 48 11,591 159,000 Commercial 51% The land is End of 2015
junction of Jiefang North Heping pending for
Road and Chifeng Road, District development
Heping District, Tianjin
Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China
U8R SN REMFE 11,591 159,000 [GES 51% fmg L —F-RER

R I I A AL e L 48R EL
ARG B 02— 13
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T AE W0 B R

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B 45 P

Year Ended 31st December
BET-HZ+—HIEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
e 2y e = vt e = /X S | K - S
HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$'000
Fik T T Tt T#L
Gross proceeds from operations Ll 45 446,627 785,270 2,386,932 703,475 3,718,737
Profit before taxation BT i A 184,860 3,646,058 1,105,368 3,190,846 2,410,113
Taxation BiIH (238,244) (1,060,842) (484,369) (1,798,059)  (1,435,583)
Profit (Loss) for the year A i A (i 48) (53,384) 2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787 974,530
Attributable to: JEMGINE
Owners of the Company AAFIERTEA A (55,506) 2,588,314 451,986 1,387,406 860,018
Non-controlling interests P12 R PR SRR A 2,122 (3,098) 169,013 5,381 114,512
(53,384) 2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787 974,530
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HOWMERE
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
#=A=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
SEERE CZTEE CZFNE CETNE -k
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
T Tt T T T#I0
Fixed assets e B 1,422,770 6,136,451 6,498,921 5,925,124 6,216,950
Lease premium for land R Y- dii 908,607 502,057 82,080 249,420 72,489
Properties under development BIERYE 835,374 34,732 - - -
Intangible assets BV EE = 4,612 = = =
Goodwill HE 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets EIERA G 603 2,027 873 2,090 3,054
Interests in associates and jointly TRBE 2w K
controlled entities BBLEINS 154,602 217,648 234,311 192,016 1,057,456
Available-for-sale investments o flt b A 229,215 151,807 97,860 132,632 137,745
Pledged bank deposits {EAMRAT I K 6,958 - - = 47,583
Net current assets L 993,008 1,481,162 2,429,882 5,413,662 7,775,412
4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232 15,343,977
Equity attributable to owners /NGl R EZ SN
of the Company T At 4 3,998,421 7,042,304 7,853,606 9,265,792 10,426,438
Non-controlling interests TP I PR b 72 158,231 166,636 339,306 344,539 1,050,674
Total equity At 4,156,652 7,208,940 8,192,912 9,610,331 11,477,112
Long-term bank borrowings RIS 348,086 363,054 192,809 319,209 1,923,349
Deferred tax liabilities ERBIEA R 79,687 991,790 991,494 2,018,692 1,943,516
4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232 15,343,977
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